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Electricity North West Limited
Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013

Electricity North West plays a vital role in the North West region We own, operate and
maintain the electricity network, delivering energy to our 2 4 milion customer premises
with a strong track record in safety and rehability

In the five year period to March 2015 we are planning to invest over £1 4 billion in the
network, supporting the North West's economic growth, providing jobs and
apprenticeships to the region’s young people and supporting the move to a low carbon
economy

We are pleased to present our Annual Report to shareholders for the year ended 31
March 2013 Further information on our Company can also be found by visiting our
website www.enwl co uk

Notice regarding limitations on Director Liability under English Law

The information supplied in the Directors’ Report has been drawn up and presented in accordance with English company law The
habilities of the Directors in connection with that Report shall be subject to the imitations and restnictions provided by such law

Business Review

The Directors in preparing the Business Review have complied with s417 of the Companies Act 2006 The Business Review has
been prepared for the Electnicity North West Group as a whole and therefore gives greater emphasis to those matters which are
significant to the Group when viewed as a whole

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

The Charman's Statement, Chief Executive Officers Statement and Business Review section of the Annual Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements (‘the Annual Report) has been prepared solely to provide additional information to the
shareholders to assess the Company and the Group's strategies and the potential for those to succeed These sections and other
sections of the Annua! Report contain certain forward looking statements that are subject to factors associated with, amongst other
matters, the economic and business circumstances occurning within the region and country in which the Group operates It 1s
believed that the expectations reflected in these statements are reasonable but they may be affected by a wide range of vanables
which could cause actual results to differ matenally from those anticipated at the date of the Annual Report The Company does not
undertake any obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements, except as may be required by law or regulation

Regulatory reporting and regulatory audits of 2012113 year end

Certain regulatory performance data contained in this Annual Report remains subject to regulatory audit by Ofgem The final
regulatory reporting pack and regulatory financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 are not due for submission to
Qfgem until July 2013, and will be reviewed by Ofgem thereafter

Woebsite and tnvestor Relations

Electncity North West's website www enwl co uk gives additional information on the Group Notwithstanding the references we
make n this Annual Report to Electncity North West's website, none of the information made available on the website constitutes
part of this Annual Report or shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference herein Interested nstitubional debt investors can also
gain access to addhional financial information by contacting the Head of Treasury and Investor Relations {contact details at our
website)
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Statement

The financial year ended 31 March 2013 has
been another strong year for the Company,
characterised by robust operational and financial
performance against a background of
preparation for the 2015-2023 regulatory price
review {'RIIO-ED1") and a focus on our company
values, to ensure they remain firmly at the heart
of everything we do

We have encapsulated our Company values n
five key statements

Customer - to delight our customers in
everything we do,

People — to work together openly, honestly and
in a professional manner to achieve exceptional
results,

Safety — to protect our people, our customers
and our environment,

Performance — to exceed expectations in how
we perform, today, tomorrow and n the future,
and

Innovation - to constantly challenge and
improve how we do things

Our Customer value, “fo delight our customers
in everything we do’" will ensure that our
customers continue to be at the core of our work
We appointed a Customer Director in Apnl 2012
to lead our Customer Strategy and thus has
resulted in a number of customer dnven
achievements dunng the year, ncluding the
creation of an integrated Customer Contact
Centre based at our Head Office in Warrington

Our People value, to “work together openly,
honestly and in a professional manner to actieve
exceptional results” recognises the role that our
people play in our contmued success We are
delighted that our Engineering Trainng Scheme
was accredited by the Institute of Engineering
and Technology in June 2012  To support this
programme we began construction of a state of
the art Traning Centre at Whitebirk, n
Blackburn, Lancashire, n March 2013 We are
also committed to the development of our
existing employees with the launch of our
Management Development Programme in May
2012

We take the safety of all stakeholders affected by
our operations extremely sernously Our Safety
value, “fo protect our people, our customers and
our environment” 1s essential to how we run our
business | am pleased that we mamntained our
OHSAS 18001 standard for Health and Safety
Management this year and, n addition, earned

the ISO 14001 accreditation Our ongoing
Behavioural Safety Programme continues to
underpin our commitment to a zero harm culture

We continue to make solid progress Iin terms of
our Performance value “fo exceed expectations
i how we perform, today, tomorrow and in the
future” This year, our operating profit was
£225m compared to £189m i 2011/2012,
achieved through operational efficiencies and
commitment A key performance indicator 1s our
Customer Minutes Lost {CML) and Customer
Interruptions (CI} CML for the year were 492
compared to achieving 476 1n 2011/12 and Cl
were 461 {459 i 2011/12) Our conbinuing
investment programmes ensure we focus on
providing the best value in afl that we do

To ensure that we are In a posihion to meet the
very real challenges ahead, ncluding responding
effectively to the need for a low carbon future,
delivering secunty of supply across the region
and meeting the increasing need for electncity, it
Is essental that we continue to be innovative In
all areas of our business This 1s reflected in our
Innovation value, “to constantly challenge and
improve how we do things" In 2011 we began a
three year, £25m programme to invest In new
technologies, including our C2C (Capacity to
Customers) project, a technical innovation that
allows us to release significant network capacity
back to customers, supported by enhanced
network management software and a revised
approach to managing our response In the event
of a fault In addition, in December 2012 we
were awarded £9m funding under the
government's Low Carbon Netwerk Fund for our
Customer Lead Active System Services (CLASS)
project The project began in January 2013 and
will run until September 2015 £9m will be spent
to trial a cutting edge technique to release
capacity on our network by marginally reducing
voltage to thousands of homes which ams to
ensure our customers get the power they need in
future without buillding costly new infrastructure
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
(continued)

As well as the revision of our values this year, we
have been planning for the new regulatory price
control model, setting Revenue using Incentives
to delwver Innovation and Outputs ('RIIO') Our
robust stakeholder engagement strategy, based
on our stakeholder engagement framework, has
ensured that a wide varety of views and opinions
have contributed to our RIIO business plan for
the eight year price control penod, 2015-2023,
due for submission i summer 2013 Our
Strategic Direction Statement 2013, published in
March 2013, outlines our final preparations for
this submission and can be found on our website
www enwl co uk

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my
Executive Leadershp Team and everyone
whose hard work and commiiment has helped us
with the achievermnents in 2012/13 My thanks
also go to my board colleagues for therr
continued strategic leadership and support In
particular, may | take this opportunity to thank

both Chnstine O'Reilly and Phil White, who have
resigned this year, for therr significant
contribution to the Company dunng therr tenure
as board members | would lke to welcome
Mark Rogers, whe replaced Chnstne 1n
September 2012, and | would ke to thank Mike
Nagle for stepping into the role as Acting
Charman followming Phil's resignaton in July
2012

I look forward to working with all of our people
over the coming year tc ensure that we achieve
our am of being the leading energy delivery
business

S

Steve Johnson
Chief Executive Officer




Electricity North West Limited

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013

Business Review

Key Performance Indicators

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Non-Financial (Group)
Safety RIDDOR " 5 7 5 6 9
Customer minutes lost ('CML’) © 49.2 476 47 4 49 9 509
Customer mterruzgmons per 100
customers (‘CI'} 46.1 459 492 50 6 48 4
Qverall customer satisfaction 2012
onwards ¥ 76% 77% n/a nfa n/a
Overall customer satsfaction n/a nla 89% 87% 82%
Financial (Group}
Revenue £468m £405m £394m £324m £342m
Operating profit £225m £189m £210m £156m £181m
Profit before tax E176m £55m £139m £17m £142m
Operating cash flow £294m £232m £246m £218m £217m
RAV Geanng 58% 61% 56% 57% 46%
Interest cover © 60times 45tmes 59 tmes 42tmes n/a
Capital expenditure on tangible and
intangible assets (cash flow) £217m £223m £177m £174m £179m
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Business Review (continued) Notes to KPls:

Key Performance indicators (continued)

© Continued strong safety performance

(1) Accidents involving employees or contractors of

Electncity North West, reportable under the Reporting
of Injunes, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulation {'RIDDOR'), we target zero accidents per
year

charactensed by low number of reported (2) Customer minutes lost 1s calculated by taking the sum
of the customer minutes lost for all restoration stages
injuries in the year for all incidents and dwiding by the number of
connected customers as at 30 September each year
csiéfr:tge pz::;g nar:ﬁe Ia:aﬁa”eorkc;itiatb":g This outperforms the Ofgem target for 2013 of 556
p ging r o The 2013 figure I1s yet to be audited by Ofgem and 1s
has seen us continue to out-perform subject to Ofgerm’'s acceptance of the severe weather
regulatory targets event exemption from January The forecast position
assumes this exemption Is agreed
The adverse customer satisfaction score (3) Customer interruptions per 100 customers Is
in the year has resuited in an increased calculated as  (total customers affectediotal
focus on this key performance measure customers connected to the network) x 100 This
outperforms the Cfgem target for 2013 of 525 The
Durr;lng the year Utlﬁre has ?een improved 2013 figure 15 yet to be audited by Ofgem and I1s
performance In the sahsfaction of our subject to Ofgem's acceptance of the severe weather
politeness of staff and speed of complaint event exemplion from January The forecast position
resolution and steps have been taken to assumes this exemption i3 agreed
set the foundations for a successful (4) At 31 March 2011, Ofgem discontinued the existing
customer culture within Electricity North customer satisfaction measure and ntroduced a
broader measure The new measure 1S expanded and
West  The centralisation of the contact includes customers with different service types,
centre is the cornerstone for our ambition including interruptions, connections and general
to significantly enhance our customer enquines Overall customer satisfaction in relation to
satisfaction measure into 2014 and the "35%0;53 mte"’ecl’ f“’m" a tfau't enquiry Is
measured by an internal overall customer expenence
beyond ~For the year end":g 31 March assessment mechanism It involves a senes of
2014 we are targeting 85% customer interviews with customers Sample interviews are
satisfaction conducted monthly The internal target 1s 85%
{5) RAV Geanng 13 measured as borrowings at nominal
Revenue has increased to £468m (2012 value, plus accretion where applicable, net of cash
£405m) as a result of an increase In and short-term deposits dwvided by the allowed
allowed DUoS (Distnbution Use of Regulatory Assel Value (RAV’) of £1,631m (2012
System) revenue us[ng RPl and the £1,519m) based on March closmg pnces Distnbution
! ' restnctions are enforced by lenders once 65% 15
::eacoagc?'t'o{::‘ ‘;Lsﬁgn?g‘ ":-goergte v;"r:‘gﬁr sthz surpassed, default level s 70%
1 1
pacity proj (6) Interest cover 15 the number of times the adjusted net

project funded by Ofgem's Low Carbon
Network Fund ('LCNF") Qver the fe of the
project, the LCNF revenue 1s offset by
costs relating to the scheme An under-
recovery of revenue In the prior year which
arose due to a combmination of price mix
and volume changes has been passed
back to customers through reduced pricing
in the year end 31 March 2013, parhally
offsetting the increase in allowed revenue
This year closed with an under recovery of
£17 1m and pncing will be adjusted to
recover this over the next year

Operating profit has increased to £225m

(2012 £189m) as a result of an increase

in allowed revenues and nsing RPI,

partially offset by

s Increased operational costs, and

« the recognition of a property provision,
see pnncipal nsks and uncertainties
section on page 26

interest expense s covered by adjusted operating
profit from continuing operations Restated in year to
remove the adjustment for regulatory depreciation, n
keeping with the banking covenants that have been in
place at ENWL since 2010
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Business Review (continued)

Company Background
Our Business

Electncity North West Limited (‘Electncity
North West’ or 'ENWL’ or ‘the Company’) and
its subsidianes (‘the Group’) plays a wvital role
in the North West region We own, operate
and maintain the electricity network, delivering
energy to 5 milion customers in 24 million
households and business premises safely and
reliably

In the five year pernod to 2015, we will be
investing over £1 4 billton Iin the network —
supporting the North West's economic growth,
providing jobs and apprenticeships to the
region's young people, and supporting the
move to a low carbon future

industry Structure

The electricity industry in Great Britain s
divided into four main sectors

T Generators Include the large power
stations and smaller renewable
generators The generators produce
electnicity from a vanety of fuel sources

© Transmission companies own and
operate the 400kV and  275kV
transmission networks that Iink the major
power stations and transport electricity in
bulk across the country National Gnd
Electricity Transmission ts responsible for
the transmission network in England and
Wales

™ Distribution companies own and operate
the lower voltage electricity networks,
connecting the smaller power stations and
the national grid to every electrtcity
customer in Bntain Onginally there were
fourteen regional Distribution Network
Operators (DNOs), but these have been
jotned by a number of smaller Independent
Distribution Network Operators (IDNOs)
The fourteen regional DNOs are currently
owned by six different companies

™ Electricity suppliers who buy the
electricity produced by the generators, sell
that electricity to their customers and pay
the network operators for  the
transportation of that electrncty across
thetr networks

The electncity market 1s regulated by the Gas
and Electncty Markets Authority which
governs and acts through the Office of Gas

and Electricity Markets ('Ofgem’} Distnbution
operators are directly regulated by Ofgem and
therr charges for use of therr networks are
subject to a price control mechanism (see “Our
Regulatory Environment”’ on page 10)

Electnicty North West 1s one of the fourteen
regional DNOs, operating in the North West of
England

Corisle

Blarknas
Braticn

Matkiun

Agian

Uanrasms

Farepwt

warcieside

Electricty North West 15 a private imited
company registered in England and Wales
We are owned by a consorium of funds
controlled by First State Investments Fund
Management Sarl on behalf of First State
European Diversified Infrastructure Fund as
the responsible entity for First State European
Diversffied Infrastructure Fund FCP-SIF (EDIF)
and 1IF Int'l Holdings GP Limited
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Business Review (continued)

Company Background (continued)
Our assets and key facts

In simple terms our network 1s made up of
overhead lines, underground cables and items
of plant, such as switchgear and transformers,
which are used to distnbute electricity to
consumers’ premises

The bulk of electncity enters our network from
the Nattonal Grid at Gnd Supply Points It then
travels through our 132kV network to a
substation where the voltage 1s transformed to
enter our 33kv network Similar
transformations take place from 33kV to HV
(High Voltage) and from HV to LV (Low
Voltage)

Through this network we deliver nearly 24
terawatt hours' of electricity each year to 2 4
million customer premises across an area of
12,500 square kilometres Qur network covers
a diverse range of terrain and customers range
from 1solated farms in rural areas, to areas of
heavy Industry, urban populations and city
centres

The network performs such that on average a
customer will experience a power cut once
every two years and on average s without
electnicity for less than one hour every year
This represents a reliability of over 99 99%

Our network comprises the following key
assets

™ Around 13,000 km of overhead lines
Over 44,000 km of underground cables
Almost 86,000 items of switchgear

1719

More than 34,000 transformers

' A terawatt hour 1s equal to a thousand million kilowatt
hours Based on average consumption this is enough to
power over 250,000 UK homes each year

Strategy and objectives

Our Company vision 1S 'to be the Leading
Energy Delivery Business’, measured against
the following strategic objectives

™ Understand and Influence the Market

™ Understand and Deliver for our Customers
and Stakeholders

T Develop a High Performance
Organisation, and

T Delivering Sustainable Growth with Robust
Financial Performance

In order to support these strategic objectives,
we need to ensure we have the nght people
using the right systems and processes aligned
to a clear vision and targets

Our plan Iincludes Investment in excess of
£20m over the regulatory pertod In renewing
our workforce, recruiting approximately 250
apprentices and graduates The plan also
includes enabling inthiatives In the areas of IT
systems, process transformation and capital
delivery to ensure the more efficient targeting
and delivery of network activity
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Business Review (continued}

Our Regulatory Environment
Economic Regulation

The electnaty market 1s regulated by the Gas
and Electnoty Markets Authonty (GEMA)
which governs and acts through the Office of
Gas and Electricity Markets (Ofgem)

The amount of iIncome that we receive from
suppliers 1s governed by a price control
framewark which 1s subject to review every five
years The electncity distnbution price control
for the five year period from 1 Apnl 2010
(DPC5) was agreed with Ofgem n January
2010 Electrnicity North West 1s permitted to
increase prices by an average of 8 5% plus
inflatton (RP1) in each of the five years of
DPC5 The cost of capital has been set at
4 0% post-tax for DPC5

These revenues fund our ability to operate and
maintain the network, to replace existing
assets and to buld new ones This 15
undertaken whilst at all tmes focusing on the
industry-wide challenges of securing a low
carbon future, secunty of energy supply and
efficient delwery for our customers

Future economic regulation - RIIO

Since privatisation in 1990, distnbution
companies such as Electncty North West
have been subject to an 'RPI-X' form of
regulation, which I1s designed to encourage
efficency The amount of revenue that
companies are allowed to recover from
customers 1s increased by RPIl less an
efficiency factor ‘X’ each year, encouraging
them to reduce costs, although n recent years
the emphasis has changed and DNOs have
been allowed to increase their prices to reflect
the need for greater investment in the network

From Apnl 2015 the regulatory framework will
change so that DNOs are incentivised to invest
in greater innovation and to delwver specific
outputs which will form a contract with the
regulater for a penod lasting eight years rather
than five

This model, known as RIIO (setting Revenue
using Incentives to deliver Innovation and
Outputs) 1s designed to put a much greater
emphasis on companies playing a full rele in
developing a more sustainable energy sector
and delivering value for money network
services for customers today and in the future

During 2012-13 we have monitored closely the
decisions Ofgem has made in implementing
the RIIO framework for electricity and gas
transmission network companies and for gas

distnbution companies We have worked
closely with Ofgem durning the development of
the strategic policy for this new price control
review which was published in March 2013
The policy framework clearly sets out the
OQutputs that DNOs will be expected to deliver,
a range of acceptable financing parameters
and a senes of mechanisms for dealing with
uncertain costs  Agamnst this emerging
strategic policy we have been developing a
detalled business plan ccovering the entire
peniod of the next price contro! untit 1 Aprd
2023 This plan will be finalised and submitted
to Ofgem In June 2013 Extensive customer
and stakeholder engagement has shaped our
future plans and priorities to the extent that we
were able to publish censiderable detail on the
draft plan in our Strategic Direction Statement
The overall mpact of our proposed
programme is to Increase the levels of network
investment, addressing the needs of our aging
asset base, improving the restlence of the
netwerk and accommodating the needs of the
transition to a low carbon economy Due to
extenswve efficiency improvements achieved to
date in the DPC5 price control pertod and
planned for the future we will be able to deliver
this large increase In activity whilst significantly
reducing prices for our customers

Where our income comes from and what
we use it for

Other than charges for new connections, we
have no direct financial relationship with
customers We charge electncity supphers for
the use of our network and the suppliers pass
these costs on to ther customers Typically,
distribution charges account for 20% of the
final electricity bill for domestic consumers

At each pnice review, we submit our business
plan for the penod to our regulator, Ofgem
Ofgem analyses our submission and
compares It to those of the 13 other DNOs,
together with data from other comparable
Industres Based on this analysis they then
decide how much revenue we are allowed to
recover from customers in each year of the
price review period under discussion

Using these revenues we raise the finance to
operate and maintain the network, replacing
and renewing our assets

Qur income n each year i1s largely fixed but we
can earn extra revenue by outperforming
targets in incentive schemes However, if we
fail to meet our targets our revenue may be
reduced

10
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Business Review (continued)

Our Regulatory Environment
(continued)

We are incentivised to minimise the number of
interruptions that our customers suffer and to
reduce the average length of interruptions We
are also incentivised to decrease the amount
of electrical losses from our network

We have a responsibility to look after our
network in the long term Through the
rmonitoring of two specific indices

- Health tndices — Hi, and

- network loading using Load Indices —
LI,

we report on the condition of our assets to
ensure our maintenance work allows us to
continue to provide a high quality service to
our customers into the future

To ensure that we have a network with the
appropnate technology for the 21* Century we
are spending significant sums on research and
development We are permitted to recover
some of this, either through the [nnovation
Funding Incentive (IFl) or the Low Carbon
Network Fund (LCNF)

11
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Business Review (continued)

Electricity North West Businesses

Structure
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Owns, operates and maintains
the electricity network for the
North West of England
providing power to 5 million
people

Provides connections to our
network for new houses and
small businesses, industries,
wind farms and housing
developers

Manages high voltage private
networks for large customers,
for example airports and
shopping centres This
business 1s operated through
Electricty North West
(Construction and
Maintenance) Limited

12
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Business Review (continued)

Our Corporate Values

Our Business Review Is structured around our
five corporate values of 'Customer, '‘People’,
‘Safety’, ‘Performance’, and ‘Innovation’

The Customer section below contains an
update on customer satisfacton and customer
complaints and includes a case study on cur
recently created central Customer Contact
Centre Our connections business, also
referred to In that section, which provides
connections services for households, small
businesses, iIndustry, and house developers, 1s
a key part of our customer facing team Some
of the project work we are involved in to divert
our  assets to allow infrastructure
developments throughout the region s also
detalled

Our People secton includes information on
employees and our workforce renewal
activites It also outlines our employee
develcpment actvity and commitment to
equalty and diversity

Qur Safety update focuses on key indicators in
health, safety and the environment

The Performance section contains detals of
our network reliability and availability, as well
as our ongoing network investment plans

The Innovation section consider progress in
our C2C and CLASS

This 1s followed by a section on CSR
{(Corporate Social Responsibility} Stakeholder
Engagement, and Financial performance

Customer

“To delight our customers in everything we
dou

Customer satisfaction

Customer satisfaction 1s measured by the
Broad Measure of Customer Satisfaction
which I1s used by Ofgem to set incentives for
improving performance in this area This
allows Ofgem to compare and measure the
ongeing performance of all DNOs {t comprises
three different components a customer
satisfaction survey, a complaints metnc, and
stakeholder engagement

The customer satisfacton survey contacts
three categones of customers separately

s Connections customers that have
received a connection quotation or a
completed connection,

s Interruptions customers that have
experienced a planned or unplanned
supply interruption, and

» General enquiry customers that have
rased a general enquiry with the
DNC

Our current performance using this measure 1S
76% However, our ambilion 1s to increase this
to over 85% and to provide our customers with
even higher levels of satisfaction wath our
services We have produced ongoing action
plans aimed to deliver this improvement

As part of our dnive to put Customer Service at
the heart of the organisation we established a
new Customer Directorate in Apr! 2012 under
the leadership of our new Customer Director,
Susan Stockwell We have identifiled key areas
In our business processes where there Is
scope for improvement and we are taking
steps to address them A key achievement
was the establishment of a centralised
Customer Contact Centre 1n November 2012,
based in the North West, which 1s at the very
core of our Customer Contact team It acts as
a one-stop shop and 18 manned by highly
skiled and experienced people who are
passionate about what they do

We carry out a monthly customer satisfaction
survey with Impact Research, which provides
qualitative as well as quantitative data, and
from which we have developed customer
satisfaction 1mprovement plans across the
business In addition we continue to utilise the
“Engaged Consumer Panel” we established
last year which provides feedback to us on
what customers view as important services for
us to deliver The message from this panel 15
very clear, they expect us to keep electricity
flowing to theirr homes and businesses, but on
the odd occasion when there 1s an interruption
In supply they expect us to restore theiwr supply
as quickly as possible

We have also improved the services that we
provide to vulnerable customers during the
year, by entering into a partnership with the
Bntish Red Cross, to offer extra care to those
customers who need assistance durnng power
outages This partnership has been very well
received by our customers

13
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Business Review (confinued)
Customer complaints

We encourage and make it easy for our
customners to tell us where the service we have
provided falls short of what they would have
expected and around 6,192 customers have
done so duning the year We measure our
performance In how quickly we respond to
these expressions of dissatisfaction with our
service We currently resolve 368% of these
issues with 24 hours and less than 9% take
over 31 days to resolve We have had one
Ombudsman case against us during this year
and we have had two repeat complaints

In order to further improve this performance
we are ntroducing a number of nitiatives
specifically targeted at improving the number
of i1ssues that we can resolve by the end of the
first working day with a target resolution of
65%

/Case Study

Establishing the Centralised Customer
Contact Centre

central Customer Contact Centre to ensure
exceptional one-stop customer service and
create a centre of excellence for customer
service across the business

After reviewing a number of options we
agreed that our Head Office at Bndgewater
Place, Warrington would provide the ideal
environment, allowing us to integrate our

resource
proposed lccation and with the respective

trade unions Within six months, in
November 2012, the Customer Contact

-

\

In June 2012 we announced the creation of a

existing teams into one dedicated customer

We consulted with employees affected by the

Centre was operational at Bndgewater Place

Customer Comments

Tweets

“Thanks to @ElectnicityNW for restoring my
power tonight, and the Engineers who braved
the weather to do 1t

(Sept 24, 8 08pm via 10S)

“@ElectncityNW Peak District scenery given

new lease of life as power lines are removed
“yay" Much prettier!”

{Oct 12, 4 12pm vta Twitter for iIPhone)

“Thanks lan at @ElectricityNW for nnging my
mum very quickly and resclving problem”
(Nov 2,4 57pm via Web)

“Got to say @ElectncityNW did well last night
Had us back on supply within an hour and a
half, thanks”

(Jan 22, 10 19am)

Mr | commended a member of
the team on his “excellent
customer service” Mr | said that
the employee’s skills in customer
service were above and beyond
what he would have expected
and even offered the employee a
role within his own company!

e

Ms L used the website to say
how mpressed she was with our
customer service In particular
being called back with
information on the fault and then
later asked if her supply was
restored

— <

“We are so amazed at the speed
and efficiency with which your
rnen deait with the tree cutting on
our property this morning It was
not the easiest of jobs and your
team arnived in atrocious
weather, we thought they
wouldn’t be able to work in a
snow blizzard — how wrong we

were!”

14
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Connections

As well as being licensed to distribute energy
in the North West of England, Electnicity North
West also provides connections services This
service enables us to deliver new electnicity
connections to fulfil the needs of our
customers, including new homes, commercial
and industnal properties (those over 60kVA),
and new building developments

Dunng 2012/13 our Connections activity has
focussed on delivering excellent customer
service, achieved by acting upon feedback
from customers and other key stakeholders

We have performed well on the GSoP
(Guaranteed Standard of Performance) targets
in the year averaging over 99% on
connections quotations and delivery, we are
now focused on reducing the time between
quotation and connection in ine with customer
expectations

We will continue to contact our customers
proactively throughout m order to identify
where we can improve the overall customer
experience

Competition in Connections

Electnaity North West has continued in its
pursuit of extending competitton in the new
connections market by working in partnership
with many independent Connection Providers
(ICPs)

Our success In opening up hve jointing to our
existing low voltage network has resulted In
this becorming an area of active competition
since August 2012

Opening competition 1n this area has allowed
local authorities to benefit from a choice of
tallored, cost effective services from therr
appointed contractors Currently around 93%
of all local authonty unmetered disconnections,
transfers and new connections are completed
by an ICP

Following the success of live jeinting to our low
voltage network, trnials to open up our high
voltage network in the same way were
successful, allowng us to open active
competition in this area in 2012

We are currently engaged in a number of
inihatives designed to develop our work in this
area, Iincluding shanng our skills and
experience and expanding the scope of our
lve jomtng work to nclude overhead
connections

Here are just a few of the statements we have
receved from our ICP colleagues supporting
our approach to our Connections activity

"We see Electricity North West as the leading
DNO in this area They have mvested a lot of
effort into finding the best way to open their
RMS'’s for competition and we believe that
other DNQOs should look at Electricity North
West's approach as the market leading way to
deal with competition 1ssues ”

GTC (independent Utity Infrastructure and

Networks Provider)

‘Electnicity North West confinue, in our
opinion, to be the DNO that promotes free
and fair competition more actively than any
other DNO or IDNO n the country”

P N Daly (IDNG)

“Electnicity North West has been most
accommodating n devefoping the
agreements lo suit the specific cases
ensurng that fair opportumties are available
for competttion to exist

Electnicify North West are defintely the

leading DNO when it comes lo gefting

agreements in place The process you have

for the application for unmetered connections

and getting the drawings returned 1s simpler
than most other DNOs ”

E On Energy Services
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Diversions: Case Studies

There are situations when our existing assets
must be diverted for major capital projects, for
example new train ines our roads etc In such
situations, our connections team assists by
diverting this existing infrastructure — these are
called diversions The following Diversions
case studies illustrate some examples over the
past 12 months

Transport for Greater Manchester (TIGM)

TfGM have continued to be a key stakeholder
for ENWL over the past 12 months as we work
in partnership with them to deliver the
diversions required for the expansion to the
Manchester Metrolink system Throughout
2012/13, ENWL have completed asset
diversion projects to assist in the expansion to
Ashton, Oldham, Rochdale and Manchester
Airport We have also worked closely with
TIGM designers to provide a best cost option
for the diversion required for the Second City
Crossing (2CC), a new route for trams across
Manchester City Centre, that 15 due to
commence construction in 2013/14

Plans are also being developed to further
extend the Metrolink network to the Trafford
Centre and Port Salford in Irlam Although the
extent of these works is unclear at present,
ENWL will work closely with TIGM to develop
efficient diversion proposals

Network Rail

2013 saw enquines from Network Rail for the
electnfication of rail ines throughout the North
West of England The project will see diversion
of Electricity North West assets across a large
number of highway brdges along the
proposed electrfied rail network The project i1s
due to begin i late 2013 and will run for a
period of three years

In addition to the electrnfication works, we are
working closely with Network Ral on the
Northern Hub project to install a new rail link
from Manchester to Salford and expansion
works at Oxford Road and Piccadilly Raillway
Stations

The government has also announced HS2, a
new high speed rail link from Birmingham to
Manchester City Centre Although it 1s unclear
at present how this will affect ENWL assets,
we expect that construction of the link will
require the diversion of a significant amount of

ENWL assets in and around central
Manchester and Crewe Construction of the
link 15 not expected for a number of years, but
it 1s anticipated that design work may need to
start over the next 12 months

National Gnd Transnussion (NGT)

Works commenced In 2012 on a project for
NGT to re-string ther 400kV overhead line
between Harker and Quernmore ENWL have
been appointed to relocate overhead line
assets underground n approximately 50
focations The project 1s due to run until July
2013 and covers LV, HY and EHV assets

Regular liaison with NGT and their contractors
Electricity Allance West (EAW) and Morgan
Sindall (MSVE) has enabled Electricity North
West to achieve some challenging programme
delivery deadlines under pressure from land
owners and their agents

Manchester Airport & Airport City

Our project team are working with Manchester
Airport Group (MAG) and TfGM to deliver a
solution for connechon of Airport City We
have also provided a number of different
solutions for electrnicity supplies to the new
retasl and commercial development planned
close to Manchester Airport

Lancashire County Council (LCC) & Highways
Agency

Work 15 due to commence In late summer
2013 on a Ink road between the M& and
Heysham Electricity North West have worked
closely with LCC on a number of different
diversion options to mimimise disruption
wherever possible

General Non Trading Rechargeable (NTR)
Diversions

In 2012/13, Electricity North West took the
step to combine general diversions into the
Connections delivery operations This will
ensure an integrated approach for customers
ensurng consistency and Improving
communications Unfortunately, the economic
climate has taken toll on the demand for
general diversions and whilst enquines
continue to be recewed, the wvolume of
acceptances does reflect the caubion being
exercised across the construction industry
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People

“To work together openly, honestly and in
a professional manner to achieve
exceptional results”

Employees

Qur people remain our most important asset,
and a key driver for us 1s ensuring the future
sustainability of the business by developing
the nght mix of skills and resources to meet
present and future needs Ensuring our staff
have access to structured development
programmes allows us to develop and
mamntain a workforce of high performing and
capable individuals, and be competiiive In
attracting new people to the organisation With
over 1,600 employees, Electricity North West
IS a major employer in the North West of
England We are investing significantly in our
graduate and apprentice programmes, as part
of our work force renewal programme, and by
doing so play a key part in providing secure,
long term employment and career
development opportunities in the region

Workforce renewal, learning and
development

During 2012/13 we contnued with our
bespoke structured development programmes
to enable us to tran indwduals to fulfi
engineering and craft roles across the
organisation We have been successful in
appointing a number of Electncal Engineering
Graduates, Trainee Engineers and
Apprentices, who have been involved in a
range of activities to develop therr technical
and operational skills as well as undertaking
placements within the business to consohdate
their learning

Our  Trainee Engineer Development
Programmes have been accredited by the
Institute of Engineening and Technology (IET),
garnenng praise for the high standard of
tranees within the business and the
expenence that they gain dunng therr ime with
us We are continuing to invest to fulfill our
traimng strategy and are bulding a new
training academy in Blackburn to support the
development of our new employees as well as
maintaining the skills and capabilities of our
existing workforce

Four of our Graduate Engineer intake from
2011/12 have successfully completed their
development programme and have been
appointed to substantive roles within our Major
Projects and Maintenance teams, where they

will design, manage, reparr and deliver
projects on our High Voltage (HV) network

We aiso continue our focus on supporting our
existing workforce to develop their skills to fulfil
thewr current and future aspirations and have a
range of formal up-skilling programmes
running during 2012/13

Leadership development

A key element of buldng a sustanable
organisation is developing the capability of our
leaders and our people Last year we invested
signficantly 1in our top managers, each
attending a three day transformational
leadership programme designed to develop
our leaders' ahiity to manage change and
coach for success Feedback from all of the
participants 1s that this programme has had a
positive impact on their development

We have also developed a Leadership
Competency Framework which, in tandem with
our Company values, defines how we expect
our leaders, managers and employees to
conduct themselves in Electncity North West

Management development

We began our Management Development
Programme in May 2012 for current and
aspinng people managers at all levels of the
orgarnisation The programme supports
individuals to develop the practical skills and
tools they need to be effective in ther role
We have 130 delegates participating in the
programme and feedback from delegates, line
managers and trainers has been extremely
positive

Equality and diversity

We have established a Steering Group to
champion and support the organisation’s
strategy 1n relation to equality and diversity
We are committed to promoting a culture that
values difference and believe that by
embracing this we can improve our market
competitiveness, foster creatvity and
innovation, enhance our corporate social
responsibiity and create an inclusive and
positive work environment where everyone
feels respected and able to give their best
Qur Steering Group have helped us to develop
our Policy and action plans throughout the
year, working on a number of projects such as
improving the accessibility of our website and
creating a range of fact sheets to raise
awareness of key issues in this area, for
example gender and religion
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People (continued)
Employees with disability

Electricity North West 1s committed to fulfiling
its obligations in accordance with the Disability
Discnmination Act 1995 and exstng and
emerging best practice As an equal
opportunities employer, equal considerabon 15
given to applicants with disabilites In the
Group’s employment critena The business will
modify equipment and practices wherever it 1s
safe and practical to do so and offer training
and career development, both for new
employees and for those employees that
become disabled during the course of ther
employment

Internal employee engagement

Keeping our workforce fully informed and up-to-
date with latest Company and local information
i1s extremely important to Electricity North West
An anternal communications strategy ensures
that employees can find out about corporate
and depot information in a venty of different
ways

The bi-monthly company news magazine,
‘NewsWire’, Monthly Team Briefs and Weekly
Bulletins ensure that our people receive regular
communications All Company and directorate
scorecards are avallable on our intranet, The
VOLT, along with a wide range of other
Company information

The scorecards ensure that our employees can
clearly understand the Company performance
and how therr role and department feeds into
this success Departmental team meetings and
one-to-one meetings with ine managers I1s also
a key way to engage with our people

Safety
“To protect our people, our customers and
our environment”

Health, Safety and Environment

The Group 15 committed to achieving the
highest standards of health and safety for all
our customers, employees and contractors We
continue to drive zero harm culture to meet our
performance targets, whilst developing our
safety culture and improving our processes and
systems As a clear demonstration of our
commitment in this area there 1s a formal
committee of the board charged with setting
health and safety strategy, objectves and
targets, reviewing and monitoning performance,
and reporting to the board

Underpinning the business’ drnve to achieving
the highest standards of health and safety is
our health and safety management system,
which s certified to the OHSAS 18001
standard, together with robust leadership being
demonstrated at every level of management

This year, we delivered training programmes to
provide employees with the skills to positively
influence safety on site and continued to invest
n enhanced controls to mirimise the nisk to
employees and members of the public

Electricty North West continues to support both
the Health and Safety Executive's UK five year
strategy and the ENA’s ‘Powenng Improvement’
strategy

The continued Investment in health and safety
has delivered the Groups’ accident frequency
rate targets in the year and kept the number of
RIDDOR  reportable accidents  involving
employees to five {2012 seven)

Environment

Electricity North West 15 committed to
achieving  excellence in  environmental
performance through mimimising adverse
environmental impacts whilst investing in a
future that supports the low carbon economy
This commitment 1s founded on an investment
programme with environmental concerns at its
core and a robust environment management
system

In terms of our investment strategy, a wide
range of capital projects were completed in the
year ncluding enhancing ol bunding and
containment, flood protection, noise
containment, contaminated land remediation,
vegetaton management, flud filled cable
losses reductons and mproved wvisual
amenity

The environment management system was
further developed in the year and was
certificated to the ISO 14001 standard

Performance

“To exceed expectations in how we
perform, today, tomorrow and in the future”

Network reliability and availability
Quality of Service

Electricty North West continues to invest in
repairing and upgrading the network and we
continue the installation of automated
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Performance (continued)

technology that reduces the number of
customers affected by faults and restores the
supply more quickly by fixing problems
remotely

Under the regulatory Interruptions Incentive
Scheme, Electrnicity North West has been set
network performance targets for the number
and duration of customer supply interruptions

The average number of mterru;)tlons per 100
customers per annum was 46 1° (2012 45 9)
The average number of minutes for which
customers were without supply was 492
minutes’ (2012 47 6)

The worsening position i1s mainly due to severe
weather conditions during the year 2012/13,
heavy rain in 2012 and prolonged heavy snow
in 2013 As an example, during the extreme
ran in 2012, we experienced a 30% increase
in low voltage (transient) faults compared to
the previous year We understand that keeping
our customers’ ‘lights on' I1s a key prionty and
have been investing i Qualty of Service to
reduce the effects of supply interruption We
have also focused on reducing the effects of
planned supply interruptions

Worst served customers

Qualty of Service Incentives have been very
effective Iin  1mproving the average
performance of the network, but an anomaly
anses where the network which supphes the
worst served customers may be deemed to be
uneconomic to mprove We worked closely
with Ofgem and other industry members
throughout the previous prnce review to
develop a new incentive mechanism which
encourages Investment to improve the service
afforded to the community of these ‘Worst
Served' Customers This mechanism has
faciitated additional work programmes which
would previously have been considered
inefficient

‘Worst Served’ customers are defined as those
who experience at least 15 higher voltage
Interruptions over a three-year period and a
minimum of three in each qualfying year
1,136 of our customers met the qualfying
cntena in 2012/13 (201112 1,032)

22013 figures are draft subject to Ofgem audit and are
stated after allowed exclusions, | @ severe weather events
as per 2012

In 2012/13, we nvested £02m n the
implementation of improvement schemes for
these customers

Network Investment
Overall

Our investment programme 1S amed at
delivering a reliable and sustainable network
that delivers excellent customer service at an
affordable price To achieve this, we invest in a
range of programmes which ensure that we
replace unreliable assets, ensure there s
enough capacity to satsfy demand and
manage a range of other impacts including
environmental effects and the requirements of
legislation

201213 saw the delwvery of our largest
network investment programme to date, with a
total of £108 3m being delivered (2012 108 5),
consistent with our planned nsing investment
profile of DPC5 and the plans we shared with
Ofgem in 2011 The programmes below
highlight the Investments we have been
making to ensure safe and reliable electricity
supphes in the North West

Programmes

We have contihued to make progress on
delverng a number of enhancement
programmes in 2012/13, as part of our five-
year investment programme

£5 5m of investment was completed in our
ongoing programme to install remote control
and automation technology on the network to
mimimise the effect of faults when they occur
This brings the total invested in the 2010-2015
penod to date to £14m

This investment 1s having a real impact - In
2012/13, each unplanned fault affected 77
people compared to 92 five years previously
For those who did experience a fault, power
was restored in an average of 92 minutes
compared to 113 minutes five years ago

However, although these improvements are
hard won and significant, we believe we can
and should do even better Customers
consistently tell us that the reliabiity of their
electricity supply should be our number one
prionty and we will continue to invest in further
improvements
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Innovation

“To constantly challenge and improve how
we do things”

C2C Update

Since being awarded funding from Ofgem’s
Low Carbon Network Fund (LCNF) for C2C in
December 2011, our future networks team
have achieved a number of key milestones
The project will tnal the use of new technology
and nnovative commercial contracts to
increase the amount of energy that can be
transmitted through our network to help meet
the UK's tough low carbon targets

Stakeholder engagement

Direct Customer mailing, detalled customer
surveys, dedicated website and videos have
been used to engage with stakeholders and
possible customers The first major industry
event was held in December 2012 at Reebok
Stadium, Bolton to inform and engage with
new connections customers about C2C
Following a post seminar survey, results
showed that 86% of customers would
recommend their organisation get involved
with the tnal

Before the trial started in April 2013, much
preparation needed to be carned out Nearly
500 remote control devices have been fitted in
substations on 10% of the network which
forms the tnial circuit area This remote control
takes away the need for an engineer to attend
the site when a fault occurs

In Agnl, the first tnal customer was signed up
The Bolton Arena, an existing customer
agreed to a managed contract for the 18
meonth trial penod

CLASS

The Future Networks Team are also working
on the CLASS (Customer Load Active System
Services) project following Ofgem
announcement of funding for the £9m project
last November CLASS runs from January
2013 until September 2015 Like C2C, CLASS
will tnal a cutting edge techrique to maximise
the use of the existing network But while C2C
frees up capacity by reconfiguring the network
and using our ‘reserved emergency’ capacity,
the CLASS tnal will reduce demand by
reducing voltage
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Corporate Social Responsibility

We define Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) as ensuring our business I1s successful
in the inclusion of social and environmental
considerations into our operations

This means satsfying our customers'
demands whilst also managing the
expectations of other people such as
employees, suppliers and the community
around us It means contributing positively to
the North West region and managing our
environmental impacts

2012 CSR review

Following a review of our CSR strategy n
2012, and working in conunction with our
stakeholders, we have wdentified the 4 key
areas' that will form the basis of our CSR
strategy going forward They are

Community
Marketplace
Workplace
Environment

100 commitments

As part of our CSR strategy, we have
promised to complete 100 CSR commitments
over the next 10 years We have 23 currently
underway, which have been agreed and
approved through the appropriate governance
channels More information can be found
online at http //www enwl co uk/about-

us/corporate-social-responsibility-{csr)/100-
commitments

Business in the Community

We continue our close working relationship
with Business in the Communty and
completed their CR (Corporate Responsibility)
Index for the first time during the year 2012/13
The index measures a wide range of activities
including, community strategies, health, safety
and environment fargets as well as chantable
giving and employee volunteering We gained
a score of 54% and the associated feedback
report has provided us with key information
that we are able to use to build on our success
and our aim 15 to gain a score of above 70% In
2013/14 n order to achieve bronze status

Stakeholder Engagement

Engaging with our key stakeholders -
understanding therr views and concemns,
Iistening to their ideas and opinions and truly
getting to know what 1s important to them — 1s
incredibly important to Electricity North West

Equally important 1s our ahility to react to this
feedback and directly integrate stakeholder
views In the way we run our business and how
and where we Invest ther money
Fundamentally we want to deliver great value
for our customers and give them what they
want

Cur aim 1s to provide all our stakeholders with
the best service possible, delivering reliable
efficient and safe electncity to homes and
businesses 24 hours a day and 7 days a week

We have developed a clear strategy and
framework to ensure an integrated approach to
our stakeholder engagement activities by
working with AccountAbility, a leading global
organisation providing reliable frameworks and
standards n  CR and  Stakeholder
engagement During the year we have set up
an Internal and External Stakeholder forum,
both charred by our CEQ, Steve Johnson
Stakeholder engagement has also played a
vital role in influencing our plans as we
prepare our Well Justfied Business Plan as
part of our RIQ-ED1 submission We will
continue to develop this commitment to
Stakeholder Engagement with the am of
achieving AccountAbility's AA1000 Standard In
2013/14
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Group 2013 2012
Revenue £468m £405m
Operating profit £225m £189m
Profit before tax and fair value

movements £174m £136m
Profit before tax £176m £55m
Taxation charge/(credit) £29m {£15m)
Operating cash flow £294m £232m
Interest cover 6.0 times 4 5 times
Capital expenditure on tangible and

intangible assets (cash flow) £217m £223m
Revenue

Revenue has nsen to £468m durnng the year, Profit before tax

as a result of an increase Iin allowed DUoS
(Distribution Use of System) revenue, rising
RPI and the recognition of £5 8m of income
under the Capacity to Customers project which
is funded by Ofgem’s Low Carbon Network
Fund (LCNF) Over the life of the project, the
LCNF revenue 1s offset by costs relating to the
scheme

Under recovery of DUoS revenue at 31 March
2013 was £171m (2012 £127m under-
recovery} This under recovery wil be
recovered through increased pricing in the next
two years

Operating profit

Operating profit has increased to £225m (2012
£189m) as a result of

Ly Increased DUoS Revenue, offset by
- Increased operational costs

L The creation of a provision for retail
property obligations, refer to principal
nsks and uncertainties (page 28)

Profit before tax and fair value movements

Profit before tax and farr value movements has
increased as a result of increased operating
profit and a decrease in interest expense due to
RPI movements on index linked debt

The 2013 position reflects a net fair value gain
of £2m being recognised in the Income
statement for this year (2012 £79m loss) Of
this, £12m has no cash flow impact and £10m
Is a cash payment of accretion on index-linked
swaps

Taxation

In July 2012, a reduction in the UK Corporaticn
tax rate was substantively enacted bringing the
rate down from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013
The reduction in corporation tax rate resulted in
a deferred tax credit to the Group’'s income
statement of £10 8m (2012 £21 3m)

The prior year current tax credit of £19m
anses as a result of changes between the
estimated tax position in the pror year financial
statements and the final tax computation
position, due primarily to work done during the
year on the optimisation of capital allowance
and research and development tax clams

Dividends and dividend policy

In the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Company pad dwvidends of £66m (2012
£62m} This figure represents Interim
payments of £23m paid in June 2012 and £43m
paid tn December 2012 (2012 This figure
represented intenm payments of £25m paid in
June 2011 and £37m paid in December 2011}
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Dividends and dividend policy (continued)

On 24 May 2013, the Board of Directors
approved an intenm dividend for the financial
year ending 31 March 2014, of £15m, (315
pence per share) payable in June 2013

Electricity North West's dividend policy I1s that
the Company shall distrnibute the maximum
amount of available cash in each financial year
at semr-annual intervals, after taking due
account of forecast business needs and the
Group’s treasury policy on hquidity

Distributions are Imited by the maximum
amount permitted by applicable law In any
financial year and are subject to the Company's
licence obligations and financing restrictions

Financial Position
Property, plant and equipment

The Company's business Is asset-intensive and
highly regulated both operationally (eg
Etectricity Safety & Qualty Continuity
{(Amendment) Regulations, ‘ESQCR’,
legislation) and economically The Group
allocates significant financial resources to the
renewal of its network to maintain services,
improve network rehability and customer
service and to invest to meet the changing
demands of the UK energy sector The total
cost of the Group's property, plant and
equipment at 31 March 2013 was £3,741m
(2012 £3,531m), with a net book value of
£2,560m (2012 £2,431m) In the year ended
31 March 2013, the Group invested £217m
(2012 £224m) in capital expenditure This 1s
mainly related to a large number of projects for
the renewal and improvement of the network as
described above New investment i1s financed
through a combination of operating cash flows
and increased borrowing capacity against a
growing RAV

Working capital Inventones, Trade and other
receivables and Trade and other payables

ENWL holds inventories of £5m (2012 £7m)

Trade and other receivables have increased to
£61m (2012 £54m) primanly as a result of an
increase In the level of accrued income and
amounts owed by Group undertakings

Trade and other payables have decreased to
£139m (2012 £151m) pnmanly as a result of a
reduction in the amounts owed to other group
companies

Net Debt
2013 2012
£m £m
Cash and deposits €9 84

Borrowings repayable

- After one year (1,113) (1,087)

Net debt (1,044) (1,003)

Net debt has increased by £41m primarly due
to capital investment and dividends paid
exceeding the net operating cash flows
generated by the Group

Borrowings repayable after one year include
bonds with long term matunties of £704m
(2012 £683m) These bonds have nominal
value of £450m at 8 875% maturing In 2026
and £100m of 14746% index-inked bonds
maturing in 2046 The £135m long term loan
from the European Investment Bank (‘EIB’} 1s
aiso repayable after one year This 15911%
index-linked loan matures in 2024 Also
included In long-term borrowings are nter-
company loans at 31 March 2013 of £263m
(2012 £263m)
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Financial Position (continued)
Pension obligations

The wvaluation of the Company's pension
scheme under IAS 19 results In a net pension
deficit at 31 March 2013 of £106m (31 March
2012 £14m) The deficit as at March 2013 1s
higher than the prior year end mainly due to the
impact of lower corporate bond yields leading
to a lower discount rate and a higher value
being placed on the habiities, partially offset by
good asset performance over the year and
deficit contnbuttons paid by the Company

The pension scheme funding valuation as at 31
March 2010 (using assumptions agreed by the
Trustee, In consultaton with the Scheme
Actuary) has been agreed with the scheme's
Trustee and a deficit reparr schedule agreed
over 15 years to March 2025, which aligns to
Ofgem’s funding assumptions

Commutments

Detalls of commitments and contractual
obligations are provided in notes 9, 10, 18 and
26 of the financial statements

Cash flow

The Group’s net cash generated from operating
activities after interest paid and taxation
received was £248m, an increase of £78m from
2012, reflecting the increased profit position
The Groups net cash outflow from investing
activities was £188m, a decrease of £56m due to
a decrease in property, plant and equipment
purchases In the year Net cash outflow from
financing activities was £51m (2012 outflow of
£45m)

Liquidity

The Group's primary source of lgquidity 1s
retained profit plus funding raised through
external borromngs The Company has an
agreed regulatory price control to March 2015
which provides certainty for a large majonty of
the Group's revenues from ongoing operations,

providing both stable and predictable cash
flows

Short-term hquidity

Short-term liquidity requirements are met from
the Group's normal operating cash flows
Further hquidity 1s provided by cash and short-
term deposit balances

In total at 31 March 2013, unutilised committed
faciittes of £50m (31 March 2012 £55m),
together with £69m (31 March 2012 £84m) of
cash and short-term deposits provide

substantial short-term lquidity for the Group
and Company

Utiisation of undrawn facilities will be with
reference to RAV geanng restrictions for the
Group

Long-term hquidity

The Group's term debt was £1,113m at 31
March 2013, compared with £1,087m at 31
March 2012 Amounts repayable after more
than five years compnse bonds and bank and
other lcans

The Group’s long-term borrowings mature at
dates between 2015 and 2046 OQur long-term
debt ratings have remained stable Currently
ENWL 1s rated BBB+ with stable outlcok by
Standard and Poor's, Baa1 with stable outlook
by Moody's Investors Service and A- with
stable outlook by Fitch Ratings Our short-term
debt ratings are A-2 and F2 with Standard and
Poor's and Fitch Ratings respectively

Conclusion

The board has reviewed the 31 March 2014
Budget, the Company's updated DPC5
business plan and the requirements of the
Company's licence Condition 30 (‘availlability of
resources’) and considers that the Company
has sufficient hquidity to meet its anticipated
financial and operating commitments for at
least the next 12 months

Treasury Policy

The Group's treasury function cperates with the
delegated authonty of, and under policies
approved by, the Board The treasury function
does not act as a profit centre and does not
undertake any speculative trading activity It
seeks to ensure that sufficient funding 1s
available in line with policy and to maintain the
agreed targeted headroom to key financial
ratios

Long-term borrowings are at fixed rates to
provide certainty or are indexed to inflation to
match the Group's (‘RPI') inflation linked cash
flows
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Financial Performance (confinued)
Treasury operations

The principal financial nsks which the Company
Is exposed to and which anse in the normal
course of business are credit nsk, iquidity risk
and market nsk Market risk includes foreign
exchange, interest rate, inflalon and equity
price nsks

Credit (counterparty) nsk management

There 1s a nsk that falure of one of Electrnicity
North West's counterparties in the current
economic climate could result in a financial loss
for the business

Exposure limits with counterparties are
reviewed regularly The Company has adopted
a polcy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of mitigating the nisk
of financial loss from defaults The Company’s
exposure and the credit ratngs of its
counterparties are continvously monitored and
the aggregate value of transactions concluded
1s spread amongst approved counterparties

Liquidity nsk management

The Group manages the liquidity profile of its
assets, labilities and commitments so that cash
flows are appropnately balanced and all
funding obhgations are met when due This s
achieved through maintaining a prudent level of
hquid assets, and arranging funding facilities
{discussed on previous page)

Market nsk management

The Group manages interest rate exposure by
seeking to match financing costs as closely as
possible with the revenues generated by its
assets The Group's exposure to interest rate
fluctuations 15 penodically managed in the
medium-term through the use of interest rate
swaps

Denvatives are used to hedge exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and inflation A
derivative 1s a financial instrument, the value of
which changes in response to some underlying
varnable (e g an interest rate), that has an mnitial
net investment smaller than would be required
for other instruments that have a similar
response to the variable, and that will be settled
at a future date At present, the Company uses
Interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk
and inflation swaps to convert fixed rate debt to
index-hnked borrowing No formal hedge
accounting 1s undertaken

The Group’'s use of denvative instruments
relates directly to underlying indebtedness No
speculative or trading transactions are
undertaken The proportion of borrowings at
effective fixed rates of interest for a period
greater than one year 1s set in conjunction with
the level of floating rate borrowings and
projected regulatory revenues that are exposed
to inflatonary adjustments (iIndex-linked)
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group considers the following nsks to be
the prnincipal ones that may affect Electricity
North West's performance and results but
cautions that the nisks listed in this section do
not address all the factors that could cause
results to differ matenally There may be
additional nsks that the Group has no control
over, or that are deemed immatenal based on
either information currently avallable or the
Group’s current assessment of the nsk
Nevertheless, in its ongoing review of risk, the
Group I1s confident that its assessment of the
principal nsk categones I1s correct and that its
analysis of individual nsks 1s soundly-based

Changing Regulatory Framework

There 1s a risk that Ofgem’s revised framework
for future price controls (‘RIIQ’Y may adversely
affect the cash flow, financeabiity and/or
valuation of the Company, if implemented in an
unfavourable manner Ofgem’s RIIO objectives
set out the principles that the regulator will
employ in agreeing future price controls with
distnbution companies These include a
number of significant changes from the
principles employed n previous price controls
In the main they represent an opportunity to
grow the Company by demonstrating the key
role that networks have to undertake in the
transiton to a low carbon economy and In
delivering a long-term value for money network
services for existing and future customers

in the current year a significant amount of
resource has been dedicated to planning for
the RIO-ED1 penod, which ncludes the
development of the Well Justified Business
Plan which will be submitted to Ofgem In the
summer of 2013 and also to influence Ofgem
on our specific plans and ambitions for the
period from 2015 to 2023

Financing our investment needs

The Group and the Company are financed to a
large extent by long term external funding
There 15 no guarantee that new external
funding requirements under the RIIO regulatory
settlement will be financed by external debt
providers Forecast operating cash flows, the
present cash position and committed undrawn
facihties provide sufficient hquidity to meet the
Company's anticipated financial and operating
commitments for at least the next 12 months
The Company has in place a financing strategy
to meet future financing needs, including a
regular dialogue with the main inshtutional debt
investors As a result of the dependence on
debt for long term finance, interest 15 a
significant cost to the Group and Company

The approach to managing and mitigating the
potental interest rate nsks are discussed In
note 16

Failure to deliver efficiently will have
adverse impact on regulatory settlement for
RIIO-ED1{

Due to the Company being a sole DNO and,
unlike the rest of the sector, not part of a larger
group of DNOs, there 1s a nisk that we are, In
cormpanson to the sector, seen as inefficient for
RIIO-ED1 because of high direct unit costs,
business support and indirect costs leading to
an unfavourable regulatory settlement for RIIO-
ED1

Direct unit costs

Management are tracking costs of the capital
programme against Ofgem regulatory
allowances We have benchmarked unit costs
to where the upper quartile 1s forecast to be
Outputs are being tracked with measures on
the corporate scorecard to ensure the
effectiveness of capital programming and
effictency of capital delivery Management are
using these new measures o enhance
forecasting of unit costs for RIO and are
developing robust plans te achieve or beat
these targets

Bustness support and indirect costs

We are reviewing business support/indirect
costs and substantial further efficiencies have
been identified Furthermore, we have
provided Ofgem with compelling evidence of
the substantial scale of fixed costs that
Electricty North West bears that all other
DNOs, by wvirtue of being members of wider
ownership groups, will be able to share
Reputable expert consultants have estmated
the efficient fixed cost uphft required above the
costs of a two licensee group These factors
will all be incorporated into our Well Justified
Business Plan submission to Ofgem for the
RIIO-ED1 period

Retail Price Index (‘RPF) fluctuations

Fluctuatons in RPI impact the Company In a
number of ways, most notably in revenues and
Regulatory Asset Value (‘RAV’) In order to
monitor potential exposure to fluctuating RPI,
each month the Company sources RPI
forecasts from a selection of financial
institutions  These are used to refresh the
Company's forecasts and sensitivittes on at
least a quarterly basis Any significant
exposure arising from these updates is advised
to the Executive Leadership Team and the
Board as appropnate
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Principal risks and uncertainties
(continued)

The losses incentive mechanism

There 1s a nsk that revenues will be adjusted
downwards in 2015-16 as a result of the
Losses Rolling Retention Mechanism {'{LRRM’)
This mechamism (part of the previous price
control, DPCR4) allows for a final reconciliation
of losses benefits achieved during the DPCR4
period, based on the cumulative losses
performance at the end of the penod

The final year of DPCR4, which 1s key to the
calculation of the LRRM, saw major fluctuations
in settlement data due to corrections being
applied by electricity suppliers This has been
recoghised at an industry level and Ofgem has
stated that it will take steps to ensure there are
no windfall gamns or losses ansing from
settlement data corrections, including the
restatement of 2009-10 data where 1t 1s shown
to be abnormal Ofgem have i1ssued their
‘minded to’ position for all DNOs in a
consultation on the LRRM calculation For
Electncity North West this 15 a credit of £0 5m
There has been a robust challenge to Ofgem’s
proposals In consultation responses, leaving
the residual nsk of a change from the ‘minded
to’ positton The quantum of any resulting
LRRM liability 1s uncertain at this stage Ofgem
have removed the deadliine by which this
matter must be resolved from our licence

Delivery of network investment plans and
outputs

The Company has agreed its network
investment requirements for the period to 31
March 2015 with Ofgem These plans include
a significant increase In the volume of actiwity,
partcularly with respect to the refurbishment
and renewal of overhead lines from both an
operational and safety perspective Failure to
deliver the capital plans may lead, n some
circumstances, to non-compliance with safety
legislatton and perceived non-delivery by
Ofgem and our customers, leading to potential
claw-back of efficiencies, penalties under the
outputs regime and/or loss of credibility for
future regulatory submissions

Electncty North West has developed
implementation plans to ensure sufficient
contractor resources are procured, work
content of projects 15 designed In a timely
manner and processes are in place to fully
deliver our outputs efficiently

High wholesale energy prices

There 1s 2 nsk of increased political and/or
regulatory sensitivity to Distnibution Use of
System (DUoS) prices because of high
wholesale/retall energy pnces leading to
mitations to DUoS price nses, associated
investment plans, price changes or a prnce
contro! reset A poliical, unsustainable
decision may be made which would put a large
amount of pressure on Ofgem

Customer satisfaction

There i1s a nsk that the company will not meet
the requred level of performance against
Ofgem's customer satisfaction measure This
measure rewards or penalises DNQOs for therr
relative performance on customer satisfaction,
complaints and stakeholder engagement A
programme of improvement activities is being
coordinated by the Customer Service Strategy
Steering Group optimise Electncity North
West's relative position agamnst all three
elements of the measure

A major event causing significant service
interruptions adversely affects profitability

The majonty of service interruptions relate to
minor network i1ssues that are rectified promptly
with hmited effect on customer supples
However, the network occasionally experiences
widespread disruption, typically as a result of
chmatic effect, such as a major storm or
flooding Such an event could cause a more
significant interruption to the supply of services
(in terms of duration or number of customners
affected), which may have an adverse effect on
the Company's results or financial position due
to the impact of non-exempt events

The Company has comprehensive contingency
plans for all network emergencies, including
key contract resources such as mobile
generators and overhead line teams These
resources are contractedto carry out the
capital programme under business as normal,
but will be the first ine of escalation in the
event of a major event Our plans also include
reciprocal arrangements with other DNOs to
provide resources should we need them

Counterparty insolvency

There 15 a nsk that falure of one of the
Company's counterparies in the current
economic chimate could result in a financial loss
for the business This 1s controlled through the
use of a list of approved counterparties with
financial limits of investment by the Group
established based on credit rating and overall
spread of the total available invested cash
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Principal risks and uncertainties
(continued)

Pension scheme obligations

The Company sponsors a pension scheme with
both defined benefit (closed to new members
since 2008) and defined contribution sections
The bulk of the labilittes sit 1n the defined
benefit section, the assets of which are held In
Trust, independent of Company finances

There 1s a nsk, as with all funded defined
benefits, that under performance of the pension
scheme investments and/or an increase in the
scheme's pension habilities will give rise to a
higher scheme deficit which requires increased
Company contnbutions Currently pension
contnbutions and the scheme deficit as at 31
March 2010 that are assessed as efficient by
Ofgem are recoverable through the pnce
controls set by Ofgem Active monitoring of the
performance of the scheme's investments i1s
carned out formally on a quarterly basis by the
pension Trustee The Trustee engages external
professional legal, actuarial and mnvestment
advice for all decisions taken and regularly
consults with the Company

The scheme undertook a funding valuation as
at 31 March 2010 which wentfied a funding
deficit of approximately £145m (31 March 2008
£107m) Following constructive engagement
between the Company and the pension
scheme Trustee, a rewvised defict repair
contnbution schedule has been agreed over a
period of 15 years to 31 March 2025, in line
with Ofgem’s funding assumptions

Retail property obligations

Electricity North West previously held the
leasehold title to a number of retall properties
as a result of its legacy retall operations whilst
tradng as Norweb Plc In the financial
statements at 31 March 2012 ENWL disclosed
a contingent hability in respect of a group of 39
retail units that had been previously assigned to
a third party In the period since 31 March 2012
the third party has entered administration and
ENWL has become liable under privity of
contract for the costs associated with these
properties At 31 March 2013 six of these
leases have been disposed of or disclaimed
and a further eight units reman occupted by
third parties, leaving 25 properties for which
future cash outflows are considered probable
Additionally, there are a further four legacy
retall units where ENWL has an obligation
Leases for these properties have a range of
expiry dates from 2013 to 2021

In the remote event of all property leases
reverting to the Company, the maximum total
annual accommodation cost {which ncludes
rent, rates, service charge, insurance and
maintenance), based on certain leases
extending untl 2021, would be approximately
£54 am profiled over an eight year penod from
2013 t0 2021 (£66 4m undiscounted)

Based on the Company's current nsk
assessment which considers the location and
size of the stores, expectations regarding the
ability to both defend its position and also to re-
let the properties, cash exposure Is forecast to
peak at approximately £8 5m in 2013/14 with
the remaining outflows falling over the period to
2020/21 A provision of £200m has been
included within the financial statements at 31
March 2013 as further disclosed in note 18
This includes £18 Om n respect of 25 leases
for which management consider it probable that
a habity will anse and an additional £2 0m
transferred from accruals, relating to the further
four legacy retall properties The assessment of
ENWL's liability In relation te these properties 1s
subject to uncertainty as it involves making
judgements on individual retail premises, the
penod of vacant possession and negotiations
with individual landlords, letting agents and
tenants

In response to the change in circumstances
regarding the retall properties management
have taken action to mitigate the evolving risk
through the creation of a cross functional team
This team, working with relevant external
specialists, 1s focussed on the identfication of
potentiai new tenants and the disposal of units,
whilst also planning for the reducton of any
ongoing holding costs assoclated with
properties that are not re-tenanted
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Our Board
Mike Nagle
Acting Chairman

Mike Nagle was the Group Company Secretary
and Soclicitor of SEEBOARD pic and Senior
Vice President, Legal Services at Metronet
Raill Having now retired as a solicitor, Mike s
still involved in consultancy work Mike Is also a
non-executive director on the Boards of
Greensands Holdings Limited (the parent
company of Southern Water) and Zephyr
Investments Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Stephen Johnson, Chief Executive

Steve joined Electncity North West in 2008
from Mernson plc where he was Managing
Director, having previously been with United
Utiities Group PLC as Managing Director of its
Industnal and Commercial Business Prior to
this, Steve worked for Norweb and Yorkshire
Electricity and 1s a member of the Institute of
Engineering and Technology Steve is currently
Charr of the Energy Networks Association, the
Trade Association for Electncty and Gas
Networks in the UK and {reland and represents
the industry on DECC and Ofgem's Smart Gnd
Forum

Michael McCalilion FCA,
Chief Financial Officer

Michael joined Electncity North West in 2007 as
Commercial Director Following the in-sourcing
of the services provided by United Utities
Group PLC, he was appointed to his current
role in September 2010 Michael was
previously Head of Capital Programme Finance
for United Utilities' regulated businesses and
prior to that he was a Marketing Finance
Director with AstraZeneca plc He 1s a Fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants, having
qualified with PncewaterhouseCoopers

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
John Gittins (Independent)

John 15 an Independent Non-Executive
Director He 1s Finance Director at Fairpoint
Group PLC Prior to that he has been Group
Finance Director of Begbies Traynor Group plc,
Vertex Data Science and of Spring Group plc
John 1s a graduate of the London School of
Economics and qualfied as a Chartered
Accountant with Arthur Andersen

Niall Mills
Niall 15 Head of Infrastructure Asset
Management, Europe for First State

Investments (UK) He 1s also a drector of
Anghan Water Group, Digita Oy, Reganosa and
Healthcare Support (Newham) He has more
than 20 years of infrastructure experience
across a vartety of sectors

Niall 1s a Fellow of the Institution of Civil
Engineers and holds a Masters of Business
Adminustraton from the London Business
School He has a Diploma in Company
Directorship from the Institute of Directors

Mark Rogers

Mark joined the ENWL Board in September
2012 He 1s Asset Manager for the Australian
Infrastructure Investment team for Colonial First
State Global Asset Management Mark Is also
a director of Anghan Water Group and
Healthcare Support (Newham) in the UK, a
partner representative for Hazelwood Power, a
director of Hazelwood Power Corporation, joint
venture representative for the Somerton
Pipeline Joint Venture and 1s Deputy Chairman
of the Infrastructure Sustainabiity Council of
Australia

Surinder Toor

Sunnder 1s a Managing Director at JP Morgan
Asset Management and the global head of
asset management for JP  Morgan's
Infrastructure Investments Group In addition to
Electricity North West, he holds directorships in
Southern Water and Noatum Ports Previously,
he was the Chief Financial Officer at Scotia
Gas Networks ple and prior to that he was
Managing Director of Amencan Electrnc
Power's European operations He has also held
positions with Arthur Andersen, PowerGen plc
and at PricewaterhouseCoopers, where he
started his career Sunnder holds an MA in
Engineering, Economics and Management from
the University of Oxford and he 1s a Chartered
Accountant
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The UK Corporate Governance Code
Statement

ENWL s a private company with bonds listed
on the London Stock Exchange As it does not
have listed equity, the Company has not been
required under the UK Listing Authonty’'s Listing
Rules to report against compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) at
any time during the period under review

However, ENWL's Electncity Distrnibution
Licence requires that, in its regulatory financial
statements, the Company prepares a corporate
governance statement that has the coverage
and content of the corporate governance
statement that a quoted company 1s required to
prepare under the UK Corporate Governance
Code

In the interests of transparency for all of the
Company’'s stakeholders, the Board has
decided to also include this statement in the
Company’s statutery financial statements

The Board has reviewed its governance in hght
of the revised UK Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Financial Reporting council
(FRC) in September 2012 and the revised
Guidance on Audit Committees The Terms of
Reference of the Audit Committee were
amended to reflect the updated guidance in
January 2013

Compliance statement

The FRC's Listing Rules require UK quoted
companies to explain to shareholders how they
have applied the Main Principles of the Code or
explain why they have not done so

The intention of the Code i1s that companies
should be able to explain therr governance in
the iight of the principles which have led them
to a particular approach The Directors are of
the opinion that, in the instances where the
Company does not comply with certain
provisions of the Code, the approach Is
Justifiable given the privately held nature of the
Company and that the provisions of the Code
are disproportiocnate or less relevant in therr
case

The Company has set out below and in the
following pages its compliance with the mam
principles of the Code or explains any non-
compliance

Leadership and Effectiveness
The Role of the Board

The Company's am s to become the leading
energy delivery business, measured aganst
the following strategic objectives

+« Understand and Influence the Market,

s Understand and Deliver for Customers and
Stakeholders,

¢ Develop a High Performance Organisation,
and

¢ Delver Sustainable Growth with Robust
Financial Performance

The Board's role i1s to ensure that the Company
i equipped to deliver this strategy both today
and in the long term

To ensure that it achieves this, the Board
meets regularly to provide leadership, set
strategic direction and objectives, and ensure
that appropriate financial and other resources
are made available to enable the Company to
meet those objectives The Board has agreed
ts Busness Plan to ensure the Company's
strategic objectives are delivered through

« A stable financial structure, providing
necessary financing to support business
operations,

« Improved financial performance that meets
financial  covenants  governing  the
business,

e Sustainable dividend profile while retaining
geanng within the target level, and

e« Captal and maintenance plans that deliver
financial and network outputs in line with
regulatory contract commitments

In additien, the Board oversees the work of the
Audit Committee in drawing up and maintaining
a framework of controls that assess and
manage the nisks the business 1s exposed to
This 1s discussed In more detall on pages 36
and 37

The Company has identified a number of key
areas that are subject to regular reporting to the
Board There 1s In place a schedule of
decisions reserved for the Board which
includes strategy approval and management,
succession planning, business plan approval,
internal controls, Company policies, and
delegaton of authority Projects and contracts
have vanous limits of approval to Board level
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The UK Corporate Governance Code
Statement (continued)

The Role of the Board (continued)

The names of the current Directors, who served
during the year, and their biographical details,
are set out on page 29

Since 1 Apnl 2012, the Board has formally met
nine times Attendance by individual Directors
at meetings of the Board during the year ended
31 March 2013 was as follows

Board
Meetings Meetings
dunng attendance
appomtment
P White (Chair - 5 5
to 4 July 2012)
J Gittins 9 7
S Johnson 9 9
M McCallion 9 9
N Mills 9 8
M Nagle (Chair — g 9
from 4 July 2012)
C O'Rellly {to 17 6 6
September 2012)
S Toor 9 7
M Rogers (from
17 September 3 3
2012)

Audit Committee (Non-Executive)

Commiitee  Committee

meetings meetings

dunng attendance

_appointment

J Gittins (Charr) 3 3

N Mills 3 3

M Nagle 3 3

C O'Rellly (to 17 D 2
September 2012)

S Toor 3 3

P White (o 4 July 1 1

2012)

M Rogers (from 17 1 1

September 2012)

Suninder Toor, personally or through his
Alternate {(Mark Walters), and WNiall Mils,
personally or through his Alternate (Marcus
Ayre), attended all meetings and Committees

Board Committees

The terms of reference of each Committee are
availlable to the shareholders of the Company
and can be obtaned by wntten request from
the Company's registered office

All Committees report to the next meeting of
the Board

Audit Committee and auditors

Since 1 Apnl 2012, the Audit Commitiee has
formally met three tmes Attendance by
individual Directors at meetings of the
Committee dunng the year ended 31 March
2013 was as follows

The activites of the Audit Committee are
discussed in more detail on pages 38 and 39

Remuneration Committee

Since 1 Apni 2012, the Remuneration
Committee has formally met four times
Attendance by individual Directors at meetings
of the Committee dunng the year ended 31
March 2013 was as follows

Remuneration Committee (Non-Executive)

Comnuitee
meetings dunng
appointment

Committee
meetings
attendance

P White (Char -
to 4 July 2012)

J Gittins

N Mills (Char -
from 4 July 2012)

M Nagle

C O'Rellly (to 17
September 2012)

S Toor

M Rogers (from
17 September 1
2012)

.1

A W b A A

1

3
4
4
3
4

The activities of the Remuneration Committee
are discussed In more detall on pages 34 and
35

Health and Safety Committee

The remit of the Health and Safety Committee
includes setting the heaith and safety strategy,
objectives and targets, reviewing and
monitoring performance, and reporting to the
Board

31




Electricity North West Limited
Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013

The UK Corporate Governance Code Penstons Commiltee

Statement (continued) Committee  Commutiee
Health and Safety Committee (continued) meetings at{:ﬁﬁg:g:
Since 1 Apnl 2012, the Health and Safety M McCallion (Chair) 1

Committee has formally met twice Attendance

by individua! Directors at meetings of the N Mills 1

Committee dunng the year ended 31 March

2013 was as follows M Walters (Alternate) 1

Health and Safety Commutiee

The following employees were members of the

Committee  Committee  pengions Committee in addition to the Non-

meetings dunng meetings  pyocutve Directors listed above Fiona Brown,

appontment _attendance .. f pensions, Rob O'Malley, Head of

P White (Charr - 0 0 Treasury & Investor Relations, Helen Sweeney,

to 4 July 2012} Business Services Director, and Sarah Walls,

S Johnson 2 2 Head of Economic Regulaton It 1s expected

N Mills (Char — that the Pension Working Group will retain a
from 4 July 2012) 2 2 similar membership profile

M Nagle 2 2 Financing Committee

The following employees are also members of
the Health and Safety Committee, in addition to
the Non-Executive Directors listed above Greg
Ferme, OQOperations Director, Helen Sweeney,
Business Services Director and Mke Kay,
Network Strategy and Technical Support
Director

Pensions Committee

The duties of the Pensions Committee include
monitoring the investment strategy adopted for
the defined benefit pension habtites by the
Trustee and assessing the efficient running of
the pension scheme fto meet regulatory
requirements

At its meeting on 29 January 2013, following a
review of its corporate governance and formal
committee structure, the Board agreed that the
Pensions Committee would cease to operate
and be replaced by a Pensions Working Group,
no longer a formally constituted committee of
the board

Since 1 Apnl 2012, the Pensions Committee
had formally met once before the Board's
decision to cease its formal operation
Attendance by individual Directors at this
meeting was as follows

The Financing Committee was constituted as a
formal commitiee of the Board in December
2012 Duties include assisting the board In
overseeing the financial nsk management
strategy and treasury matters delegated to it
and approving major financial transactions on
behalf of the Board

Members of the Committee are Niall Mills,
Surnnder Toor, Michael McCallion and Steve
Johnson The Committee has met once during
the penod

Use of System Pricing,
Banking Committees

Financing and

In addton to the above, there are two
executive committees of the Board The Use of
System Pricing Committee meets to approve all
the pnces contained in the Standard Licence
Condition 14 statement and met three times
dunng the year

The Banking Committee met once during the
year and has been established to deal with
banking matters

Non-Standing Committees

As the need anses, non-standing commuttees
are established to deal with special 1ssues
During the year a Training Centre committee
met to approve the purchase and funding of a
traiming facility
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The UK Corporate Governance Code
Statement {continued)

The Chairman and Dwvision of
Responsibilities

There 15 a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
and these responsibilities are set out in ther
respective contracts

Phil White resigned as Chairman on 4 July
2012 and Mike Nagle acted as Chairman for
the remainder of the penod to ensure this
division of responsibilibes remained in place

Although Mike Nagle 1s a Non-Executive
Director, he 15 not considered independent as
he 1s a Board representative of one of the
Company's shareholders Therefore, the
Company does not comply with the cnteria for
independence of the Charman required by
section A3 1 of the Code

In January 2013 Ofgem published its formal
icence modifications for conditions in all of the
network operator licences One of the
requirements will be for an operator to have two
sufficiently independent directors (SIDs) on
therr Board Directors will not be considered
“sufficiently independent” where they are
directors or employees of any company which
has any of the same ultimate controllers as
ENWL, unless that company has a gas
transporter, electnicity  transmission  or
distribution licence Nor would directors sit on
any holding company unless its sole holding 15
the licensee and other wholly owned
subsidianes having such a licence

This icence condition will come into effect on 1
Aprl 2014, or tweive months after the licence
condition 1s enacted (whichever I1s the latter)
ENWL will therefore review the composition of
its Board and the independence of its Non-
Executive Directors and its Chairman to ensure
comphance with the Licence Conditions and the
Code

The role of the Charman i1s key in creating
overall board and individual director
effectiveness To facilitate this and encourage
openness and debate, two Board meetings in
the period were scheduled over two days to
allow time for full discussion of any ansing
Issues

The Charrman, with the assistance of the
Company Secretary, sets the board agenda
and ensures the board recewes accurate,
timely and clear information to enable sound
decision making and effective monitoring

Non-executive Directors

Non-executive directors participate fully n
discussions on strategy and are responsible,
through the Remuneraton Commiitee, for
Executive Directors’ remuneration,
appointments and succession planning for the
Executive Leadership Team

As there are representatives of both
shareholders on the Board, it has not been
considered necessary to appoint a Senior
independent Director to be avaiable to
shareholders as required by section A4 1 of
the Code

Formal meetings between Non-Executive
Directors without Executives being present took
place during the year and these provide a
forum to raise any issues

Composition of the Board

John Gittins fulfils the requirements of
independence as set out in the Code There
are four additional Non-Executive Directors on
the Board, each of whom represents one of the
Company's ultimate shareholders The
Company belleves that these Directors,
together with the CEO and CFO, are a good
balance of Executive and Non-Executive
representation to enable the Board and its
Committees to discharge their duties effectively
and to ensure that no individual or small group
of iIndividuals can, or do, dominate the Board's
decision making In addtion, employees have
been included in the membership of the Health
and Safety Committee and the Pensions
Committee in order to further enhance the
effective discharge of these respective
responsibilities

The Company 1s not an equity listed company
and therefore the quota of Independent
Directors listed in the Code, section B 12, s
not considered appropnate for the Company,
having regard to its privately held status

Appointments to the Board and Board
Member Commitment

The Board 1s satisfied that the process of
appointing new Directors to the Board 1s formal,
rigorous and transparent Succession planning
1s In place for the Executive Leadership Team
and senior management to ensure the
Company has the appropnate mix of skills and
experience

It 15 the Companys am to ensure an
appropnate level of diversity in the Boardroom
as vacancies anse Appeintments are made on
ment, taking nto account relevant skills,
experience, knowledge, ethnicity and gender
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Appointments to the Board and Board
Member Commitment (continued)

These 1ssues are also taken into consideration
by sharehclders when appointing therr
representatives to the Board

The strength of the Board 1s wvital and the
overriding aim i any new appointment will
always be to select the best candidate to
support the achievement of the Company's
objectives

There 1s no formal Nominations Committee for
the appointment of Directors, the function 1s
dealt with by the Remuneration Committee, and
the Company does not comply, therefore, with
the sections of the Code (B21, B22, B24,
B31 and E 2 3) which deal with Nomination
Committees

The Remuneration Committee has been
delegated this funchon by the Board and in any
appointment of an independent Non-Executive
Director, an external recrutment company Is
used

The terms and conditions of Non-Executive
Director appointments are made available to
shareholders The expected time commitment
1Is conveyed to Directors, either in wniten or
verbal form and all are required to confirm that
they have sufficient time to fulfil the role The
Board 1s regularly updated on other significant
appointments undertaken by any Director

Development, information and support

New Directors are given an induction on joining
the Board, detailing the Company's business,
corporate governance and reporting
procedures This induction process I1s tallored
to the skills, knowledge and expenence of the
individual and 1s designed to enable them to
discharge their duties effectively

All Directors receive comprehensive
information on a regular basis Board papers
are distnbuted via the Company Secretary’s
office sufficiently well in advance of the relevant
meeting to allow time for full consideration The
papers are detaled enough to ensure a
thorough understanding of the management
and financial performance of the Company and
its business In addition, one-day Board
meetings are held throughout the year to
enable Directors to better understand major
projects or processes in more depth Meetings
with senior management have been facilitated
during the year, together with asset tours to
consolidate their knowledge of the business

The Company Secretary assists with
professional development when required and
advises on governance matters both on an
individual basis and in the form of papers to the
Board All members of the Board have access
to independent professional advice at the
company's expense where they consider it
necessary to fulfil their responsibilities

Evaluation

A Board evaluation was conducted by Ffion
Hague of Independent Board Evaluation in May
2011 and the Board have continued to buitd on
the process undertaken at that tme The
findings have been widely discussed and the
Board will continue to undertake self evaluation
and development initiatives to ensure members
continue to enhance therr skills and expertise
with regard to therr Board responsibilities

The Committee structure was evaluated and
amended in January 2013 to ensure Committee
membership remained effective and
approprate Amendments were made to
appointment a secretary to the Health and
Safety, Pensions, Use of System Pricing and
Banking Committees

Re-election of Directors

As a private company, the Company 15 not
required to hold an Annual General Meeting
{AGM) unless requested by the shareholders
The Artcles of the Company do not require that
Directors retire by rotation The Company has
strong lnks, however, with its ulbmate
sharehclders Board membership includes
shareholder representatives and although the
Company 1s not complhant with section B7 of
the Code due to its private status, shareholders
are involved in Director appointments to at least
as great an extent as if re-election took place at
an AGM Should any Executive Director serve
as a Non-Executive Director elsewhere in a
situation where remuneration would be
provided for that role, a decision would be
made as to whether the director was authornised
to retain that remuneration

Remuneration level and components

The pmnmary prnnciple for the Company's
remuneration policy 1s that remuneration and
other terms of employment shall be farr and
compettve to attract, retan and motivate
Executve Directors (‘Executives’) of sufficient
quality to deliver the objectives of the Group

As a prvate Company, a remuneration report 1s
not requred to form part of the Company's
Annual Report and therefore the Company
does not comply with section D12 of the
Code
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Remuneration level and components
{continued)

The Remuneration Committee 1s careful to
ensure that compensation arrangements n
Executives' terms of appointments are
appropnate, reward good performance and
safeguard against rewarding poor performance
Notice periods are set at one year or six
months

Performance-related elements of remuneration
formed a significant portion of the total
remuneration package of the Executive
Directors in the year under review and these
are linked to both corporate and indwidual
performance objectives

Remuneration procedure

The Remuneration Committee sets the policy
and procedures for Executive remuneration and
for setting the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors No Director s involved In
setting his or her own remuneration

The Board has establshed a Remuneration
Committee, the terms of reference of which are
avallable to shareholders on request
Membership 15 solely made up of Non-
Executive Directors including Independent
Director, John Gittins  The Company does not,
therefore, comply with secton D21 of the
Code The Board I1s confident, however, that
the Committee remains independent and
objective and that the Committee membership
Is effectve and enables the successful
discharge of the Committee’s responsibilities

The Committee has responsibiity to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy
and framework for the remuneration of the
Executive Directors, approve employment
related benefits for other Company employees
and 1mplement employees’ bonus and long
term ncentive plans The Remuneration
Committee has responsibility for setting
remuneration and succession planning for the
Company's Executive Team

The Board uses external consultants te provide
benchmark data for base salary, bonus and
other benefits of Directors and the Executive
Team  These are reviewed annually and
pension benefits are considered when
reviewing the overall compensation package
There 15 no enttlement nor 1s there a
commitment to award an increase year on year

The Remuneration Committee also determines
the remuneratton of the Non-Executive

Directors, approves all long-term incentive
schemes and significant changes to existing
bonus schemes

The allocation of total reward to base salary
and, (maximum) performance-based, short-
term and long-term incentive plans for the CEO
IS broadly as follows

Long term Salary

(5 year)
bonus

Short term
(1 year) bonus

Short term corporate objectives are based on a
balanced scorecard approach with
approximately 55% of the total related to
financial performance and efficiency and 45%
of the total compnsing key operational metrics
The long term bonus 1s based on financial
performance  and DPCS5 comparative
performance, as assessed by Ofgem, and 1s
deferred until June 2015

Share options are not offered as an incentive to
Executives or Non-Executive Directors as the
Company I1s privately owned Remuneration for
Non-Executives 15 reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee which ensures that
this  reflects the tme commitment and
responsibilities of the role

Financial and Business Reporting

The Board takes senously its responsibility to
ensure that a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects 13 given in the Annual
Report and 1n any other report published by it
for Ofgem or other stakeholders as necessary

Directors’ responsibilities 1n relation to the
preparation of the annual report and financial
statements and their statement in relation to
information given to auditors are given n the
Directors’ Report

Details of the basis on which the Company
generates or preserves value over the longer
term and the strategy for delwvenng the
objectives of the Company are given on pages
13 to 21 of the Business Review

As discussed 1n the Directors’ Report and
accounting policies, after making diligent
enquines, the Directors have a reasonable
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expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the Company's financial statements

Internal Control framework

The Board 15 responsible for the Group's
system of internal control and its ongoing
review There 15 an established process for
identifying, evaluatng and managing the
significant nsks faced by the Company This
Internal control framework has been in place for
the year under review and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements It 1s reviewed regularly by the
Board and accords with the revised Internal
Control Guidance to Directors (formerly the
Turnbull guidance)

The internal control framework 15 desighed to
identify and manage the principle nsks and
uncertainties of the business outlined in the
business review on pages 6 to 21, rather than
to eliminate the nsk of falure to achieve the
Group’'s business objectives and can only
provide reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against matenal misstatement or
loss

The key features of Electnicity North West's
internal control framework are

© The highest standards of behaviour are
expected from our employees At
Electneity North West we are proud of our
strong commitment to having high ethical
standards in the way that we work We
have outlined what those principles are in
our Employee Code of Conduct document,
which summanses our approach to doing
business All our employees must act in
accordance with those principles

¥ Engagement and commitment are obtained
from all leveis of the orgamsation mn order
to promote a strong control environment
with clearly defined accountabilities and
organisation structures, operating within a
framework of policies and procedures
covering every aspect of the business

™ Comprehensive compliance regimes are In
place to help ensure that the business
meets its vanous financial, statutory and
regulatory obhgations

r

A well established ‘Table of
Accountabilities’, which 1s updated (as a
minmum) annually, 15 i place which
detfals the obligations under the standard
and special icence conditions that we must
adhere to It outltnes who has specific
responsibiity for compliance with each of
our licence conditions

Comprehensive business planning, nsk
assessment and financial reporting policies
and procedures are in place They include
the annual preparation of detaled
operational budgets for the year ahead and
projections for subsequent years

A Capital Programme Management Group
and Project Approvals Group with defined
polcies and procedures, for planning,
approving and monitonng major capital
investment projects, provide effective
governance In this area

Monthly reporting of financial and non-
financial performance to the Board and
Executive Leadership Team Reviews are
made of monthly performance against
budgeted and targeted performance

A detalled Internal Control Manual s
mantained, acting as the cornerstone of
the nternal control framework, which our
employees are required to adhere to This
has been subject to extensive revision In
the year to streamline certan approval
processes and improve efficiency

The Risk, Control and Assurance team has
responsibility for independently assessing
the adequacy and effectiveness of the
management of significant nsk areas and
internal control This ongoing assessment
helps to inform our annual nsk-based audit
strategy and plan

A designated audit team reporting to the
Head of Health, Safety and Environment
serves to monitor the effectiveness of our
key Health and Safety controls and
reporting processes, overseen by a
committee of the Board

The Disclosure {(“Whistieblowing”) policy for
Electricity North West seeks to ensure that
any employee may voice any concerns
about particular incidents of wrongdoing, or
other suspected malpractice, without fear of
criticism or future discrimination, provided
that any matters raised are in good faith
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© Formal briefings are provided to our
employees on key areas of the internal
control framework in order to promote
understanding and commitment, and
relevant information 15 included within
mduction for new employees

Risk Management

At Electncity North West our am 1s to be a
company where nsk management 1s embedded
in our culture, protects our reputation,
enhances our performance and i1s central to us
achieving our overall company vision “to be the
leading energy delivery business”

Core to achieving this 1s our belief that all
employees can play therr role in identifying and
managing nsk

The Company has a well embedded structure
and process to help identfy, assess and
manage risks, forming key elements of the nsk
management system

The nsk management system has been
externally validated dunng the year as being in
accordance with 1SO 31000 'Risk Management
- Principles and Guidelines’

The key features of the nsk management
system are as follows

™ Mandate and commitment demonstrated
through the nsk management policy
statement and endorsed by the Executive
Leadership Team

™ Ciear nsk management strategy in place to
support continual improvement

© Roles and responsibilities clearly defined to
ensure effective ownership and delivery of
nsk management

©  Appropriate operational and non-
operational risks are managed on a single
corporate risk register which 1s mantained
by the Head of Risk, Control and
Assurance

®  The corporate register 1s underpinned by a
number of ‘local’ nsk registers in vanous
areas of the business Key risks on these
‘local’ registers are fed nto the corporate
nsk register as they are identified

© Each nsk on the corporate register Is
designated to a member of the Executive
Leadership Team (ELT} who has the
overall responsibility for managing that nsk

™ All open nsks, associated controls and
mitigatng actions are reviewed on a
monthly basis as part of a well embedded
nsk monitonng process

© A network of nsk co-ordinators has been
established to enhance the risk monitoring
process Importantly this strengthens nsk
accountability within the business This
group meets formally on a bi-monthly basis

™ Quarterly nsk workshops are held with the
ELT in order to review the key risks that
appear on the corporate register and
discuss any emerging nsk themes

© An annual nsk review i1s formally held with
the Electricity North West Board

Audit Committee and Auditors

The main purpose of the Audit Committee 1s to
review and mamtain oversight of ENWL's
corporate governance, particularly with respect
to financial reporting, internal control and nisk
management

The Committee meets regularly dunng the year
aligned to the financial reporting timetable and
during the 2012/13 period It met three times
Significant member time s also spent at
meetings with executve  management,
understanding the key issues and underlying
processes, setting agendas and meeting with
auditors

The Committee consists of Non-Executive
Directors who have relevant expenence

Committee Charrman, John Gittins, s
considered an Independent Non-Executive
Director Therefore ENWL complies with the

Disclosure and Transparency Rule 711 to
have one Independent Non-Executive Director,
but not with the requirement of section C 3 1 of
the Code which requires three The
composition 158 considered by the Board,
however, to be objective and effective given the
Company's private ownership, shareholder
representatives on the Committee, input from
Executives and representaton from the
Company’s external auditors

By inwvitation, Audit Committee meetings are
regularly attended by the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Head of Risk, Control and Assurance and
representatives from the external auditors,
Deloitte LLP The Committee also meets
privately, without any member of management
present, with both the internal auditor and
external auditors
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Audit Committee and Auditors (coniinued)

Minutes of the Committee meetings are made
avallable to the Board Additionally, the
Chairman of the Committee reports to the
Board after each meeting on any i1ssues where
action or improvement 1s required

The main role and responstbilities of the Audit
Committee are set out in its terms of reference
and include those items detalled In section C
3 2 of the Code, except that the Company does
not hold an AGM and therefore the
appointment of Deloitte LLP as external
auditors was approved by the Board based on
the review and recommendations of the Audit
Committee

The terms of reference are available to
shareholders although a summary of the roles
and responsibiittes and a hst of its members I1s
detailed on the ENWL website

The Committee’s
include

principal responsibilities

¥ Monitoring the integnty of the financial
statements of the Company, including its
annual and half yearly reports and any
other formal announcements relating to its
financial performance

T  Reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of the Company's internal
control and risk management systems

T Reviewing whistleblowing arrangements

T Considering the appointment, re-
appointment, fees and removal of the
external auditor and making necessary
recommendations to the Board

In December 2012 the Board reviewed the
terms of reference in hght of the FRC’s
Guidance on Audit Committees and the revised
UK Corporate Governance Code issued in
September 2012 Going forward, the
Committee will ensure that the external audit
contract 1s put out to tender at least once every
10 years The Committee will also advise the
Board on whether, taken as a whole, the
Company's financial reporting 15 farr, balanced
and understandable and provides the
information necessary to assess the
Company's performance, business model and
strategy

Work of the Audit Committee

During the financial period, key areas of focus
for the Audit Committee included

® Intemal Controls — continued monioring
and review of the Company’'s system of
internal controls, taking account of the
findings of both internal and external audit
reports

© Risk Management — monitoring the
process for managing ENWL's significant
risks, including regular presentations and
reparting from the Head of Risk, Control
and Assurance A rnsk review was also
completed by the ENWL Board, feeding in
to the work of the Committee

© Relationship with External Auditors —
overseeing the Company's relahonship
with the external auditers, ncluding
recommending reappointment, the scope
and approach to their work and their fees

¥ Financial Reportng - reviewing the
Group's financial statements, including
reports from management and from the
external auditors regarding compliance
with accounting standards, key
judgements made n preparation of
financial statements and compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements

© Internal Audit Workplan - overseeing the
work of internal audit, including approval of
the plan of work for the period and
resulting actions and recommendations

With specific regard to the independence and
effectiveness of the Company's external
auditor, the Audit Committee considers the
appointment, reappointment and fees, reviews
performance, expertise, objectvity and
independence

The 2013 annual audit was Deloitte LLP’s sixth
as the Company's external auditor and on
completion of the 2012 audit the Company's
audit partner was replaced by rotation to
ensure continued independence and objectivity

Due to this audit partner rotation, it was
decided at the Committee’s January 2013
meeting that 1t 1s not necessary to conduct a
tender process The Committee will keep this
position under review, mindful of the
requirements of Section C 3 8 of the Code to
tender for the external audit at least once every
ten years To ensure continued
independence, the Audit Committee reviewed

™ Succession planning for the rotation of the
audit partner,

™ Non audit work provided and compliance
with the Company's policy on non-audit
work, and
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Work of the Audit Committee (continued)

T The auditor's statement of independence
and complance with the APB Revised
Ethical Standards for auditors

To assess the effectiveness, the Committee
reviewed

™ The audit plan and scope and the auditor's
subsequent performance agannst the
agreed programme,

© Feedback from the business evaluating
the performance of the audit team, and

©  The proposed audit fee and the required
time commitment to ensure it reflects the
scope of the proposed audit

Provision of Non-Audit Services

To ensure external auditor independence and
objectivity, the Company has in place a policy
for the provision of non-audit services by the
external auditor, which 1s managed by the Audit
Committee The policy defines the nature of
non-audit work that may be undertaken in order
that auditor independence 1s maintained The
Committee 1s required to authorise any work
not falling into the permitted categones defined
tn the policy or falling above a financial limit of
£250,000

Proposed work 1s reviewed for compliance with
regulatory requirements that preclude auditors
from performing certain types of work and to
assess If the nature of the work would create a
conflict of interest The Committee 1s updated
on the nature, cumulative costs and extent of
non-audit services provided by the auditors

The only significant non-audit services provided
by Deloite LLP In the year were taxation
advisory services regarding capital contrnibution
work

Internal Audit

T Al internal audit activity 1s conducted by a
single team under the leadership of the
Head of Risk, Control and Assurance The
role has a dual reporting line into the Audit
Committee Charrman and the Chief
Financial Officer

©  The Risk, Control and Assurance team has
responsibility to the Audit Commitiee for
agreement of the annual nsk-based audit
strategy and plan, providing regular
updates on findings and progress against
the plan The audit strategy i1s subject to
robust review each year In order to ensure

that the plan addresses key areas of focus
for the business

™ A formal quarterly meeting between the
Head of Risk, Control and Assurance and
the Audit Committee Charr takes place
outside of the formal Audit Committee
meetings m order to discuss findings and
progress agamst / adequacy of the annual
plan, and ensure sufficient resources are In
place

© The Risk, Contro! and Assurance team
comprnses both financial and operational
expertise and works closely with related
areas of assurance and compliance activity
within the business, including legal, heaith
and safety and regulation

T When 1ssues or control deficiencies are
dentified during audit engagements, the
Risk, Controi and Assurance team works
with business managers to develop
corrective action plans to address the
causes of non-compliance and gaps In
nternal controls The team employs a
rngorous monitoring process to track these
plans to completion and report results on a
monthly basis to the Executive, and at
each Audit Commitiee meeting

T To supplement the internal skills required
to complete the audit programme, the

Group uses external financial and
operational professionals, where
appropriate, to provide Independent

assurance of internal control processes In
accordance with a pre-defined scope
During the year, Internal Audit has been
subject to an external review of how it
operates within the Company, including its
roles, responsibilities and capabilities in
order to be able to benchmark against its
comparator group The review yelded
positive resuits

In compliance with the Code, the Board
regularly and at least annually reviews the
effectiveness of the Company's system of
internal control This monitoring covers all
controls, including financial, operational, and
comphance controls, and nsk management |t
1s based principally on reviewing reports from
management to consider whether significant
risks are identfied, evaluated, managed and
controlled and whether any significant
weaknesses identified are promptly remedied
or managed by more extensive monitoring
Furthermore the Audt Committee have
reviewed and approved the adoption of IFRS13
in these financial statements

39




Electricity North West Limited
Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013

The UK Corporate Governance Code
Statement (confinued)

The Audit Committee assists the Board in
discharging its review responsibilities

Relationship with shareholders

Electricity North West Limited 1s a private
company and the ultmate holding Company,
North West Electricity Networks (Jersey)
Limuted, has just two major shareholders Board
membership includes four Non-Executive
Directors taken proportionately from both the
Company’s ultimate shareholders The Board
as a whole therefore has a full understanding of
the views of the major shareholders of the
Company includng on strategy and
governance

The Company's relatonship with the
shareholders as described above i1s a strong
one not requiring a formal AGM as outlined In
section E 2 of the Code
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The Directors present their annual report and
the audited financial statements of Electricity
North West Limited (the ‘Company’) and its
subsidianes (together referred to as the
‘Group'} for the year ended 31 March 2013

Business review and principal activities

The prnincipal activity of the Company 1s the
operation and maintenance of the North West's
electricity distnbution network The distnibution
of electnety 1s regulated by the terms of
Electricity North West Limited's (‘ENWL's')
Electnicity Distnbution Licence granted under
the Electricty Act 1989 and monitored by the
Gas and Electnicity Markets Authonty The
Chief Executive Officer's statement on page 4
and the Business Review on pages 6 to 29
report on the Group’s activities dunng the year
and on likely future developments In addition
the Business Review has been compiled to
inform the Company's shareholders and help
them assess how the Directors have performed
therr duty to promote the success of the
Company under the Companies Act 2006 A
summary of key performance indicators can be
found on pages 6 and 7 The Directors, in
preparing the Business Review, have not
sought to comply with the Accounting
Standards Board's 2006 Reporting Statement
on operating and financial reviews

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal nsks and uncertainties are discussed
on pages 26 to 28

Dividends

In 2013 the Company paid dividends of £66m
(2012 £62m) This figure represents interm
payments of £23m paid in June 2012 and £43m
paid in December 2012 (2012 This figure
represented interim payments of £25m paid in
June 2011 and £37m paid in December 2011)
The Directors do not propose a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012
same)

On 24 May 2013, the Board of Directors
approved an interim dividend for the financial
year ending 31 March 2014, of £15m, (3p per
share) payable in June 2013

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2013 are set out below
Directors were appointed for the whole year
except where otherwise indicated

Executive directors
S Johnson
M G McCallion

Non-executive directors

P M White {Charr) (resigned 4 July 2012)
J A Gittins

N P Mills

M A Nagle

C E O'Rellly (resigned 17 September 2012)
M Rogers (appointed 17 September 2012)
S S Toor

Alternate Directors during the year were
ML Ayre

M A Walters

At no tme during the year did any Director
have a matenal interest n any contract or
arrangement which was significant in relation to
the Company's business

Going concern

When considering continuing to adopt the geing
concern basis in prepanng the Annual Report
and consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have taken into account a number of
factors, including the following

™ Management has prepared, and the
Directors have reviewed, updated Group
forecasts for the remainder of the DPC5
period and at 31 March 2013 which include
projections and cash flow forecasts,
including covenant compliance
considerations The forecasts include
approprate assumptions on the efficiencies
forecast from business transformation
Inherent in forecasting 15 an element of
uncertainty and our forecasts have been
sensitised for possible changes in the key

assumptions, Includng RPlI and over
recoveries of allowed revenue This
analysis demonstrates that there s

sufficient headroom to key covenants and
that sufficient resources are available within
the forecast perod

¢ The Company’'s electnicity distnbution
licence includes the obligaton in standard
condibion 40 to mantain an investment
grade 1ssuer credit rating
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™ Under section 3A of the Electncity Act
1989, the Gas and Electricity Markets
Authonty has a duty, in carrying out its
functions, to have regard to the need to
secure that licence holders are able to
finance therr activities, which are the
subject of obligations imposed by or under
Part 1 of the Electncity Act 1989 or the
Utilittes Act 2000

© Short-term liquidity requirements are
forecast to be met from the Company's
normal operating cash flow Further quidity
Is provided by cash and short-term deposit
balances Furthermore, £50m of committed
undrawn bank facilities are availlable from
lenders and which have a matunty of more
than one year Whilst the utihsation of these
facihties 1s subject to geanng covenant
restrictions, projections to 31 March 2015
indicate there 1s significant headroom

Consequently, after making approprate
enquines, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the Annual Report and Financial
Statements

The going concern basis has been adopted by
the Directors, with consideration of the
guidance given in ‘Going Concern and Liquidity
Risk Guidance for Directors of UK Companies
2009 pubhshed by the Financial Reporting
Council in October 2009

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Group maintains an appropriate level of
Directors’ and Officers’ insurance whereby
Directors are indemnified against labiktes to
third parties to the extent permitted by the
Companies Act

Political and charitable donations

The Group made no political donations in the
year (2012 £ml) Chantable donations by the
Group in the year amounted to £4,100 (2012
£4,700) in support of causes In the local
communities in which it operates

People

The Company's polcies on employee
consultaton, the treatment of disabled
employees and on equality and diversity across
all areas of the business are contained within
the employees section of the Business Review

Corporate Social Responsibility

Details of the Group's approach to Corporate
Social Responsibility can be found in the
Business Review

Essential contractual relationships

Certain suppliers to the Company contnbute
key goods or services, the loss of which could
cause disruption to the Company's services
However, none are so vital that their loss would
affect the viability of the Company as a whole,
nor s the business of the Company overly
dependent upon any one individual customer

Policy on the payment of suppliers and
creditors

The Company's policy 1s to pay suppliers
according to agreed terms of business These
terms are agreed upon entenng into binding
contracts and the Company seeks to adhere to
the payment terms, provided the relevant
goods and services have been supplied n
accordance with the contracts

As at 31 March 2013, the average credit period
taken for trade purchases was 15 days from
receipt of Invoice (2012 20 days)

Research and development

The Company 1s committed to developing
innovatve and cost-effectve solutions for
providing high qualty services and reliability to
our customers, and for the benefit of the wider
communty and the development of the
network, as further detalled n the Business
Review

Financial instruments

The nsk management objectives and policies of
the Company in relation to the use of financial
instruments can be found In the Business
Review and in note 16 to the financial
statements

Fixed assets

Further detals on Property, Plant and
Equipment are provided in the Business
Review and note 10 to the financial statements

Capital structure

See note 29 for detals of the Company's
capital structure
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Directors’ Report (continued)
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
annual report and the financial statements In
accordance with  applcable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the Directors have elected to
prepare the Group financial statements In
accordance with International  Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union (EU) and have also chosen to
prepare the parent company financial
statements under IFRSs as adopted by the EU
Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and far view
of the state of affars of the Group and
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
and Company for that pernod In preparing
these financial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors

T properly select and apply accounting
policies,

™ present information, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable
information,

™ provide additional disclosures when
compliance with the specific requirements
in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to
understand the ampact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity's financial position and
financial performance, and

® make an assessment of the company's
ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explan the companys
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of
the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities

The directors are responsble for the
maintenance and integnty of the corporate and
financial information included on the company's
website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of

financtal statements may differ from legislation
in other junsdictions

Information given to auditor

Each of the persons who i1s a Director at the
date of approval of this annual report confirms
that

(1) so far as the Director ts aware, there 1s no
relevant audit wnformaton of which the
Company's auditor is unaware, and

{2) the Director has taken all the steps that he
ought to have taken as a Director in order to
make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's
auditor 15 aware of that information

This confirmation 1s gwven and should be
interpreted within the provisions of s418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Independent auditor

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness
to continue in office as auditor of the company

In accordance with section 487 of the
Companies Act 2006, Deloitte LLP are deemed
to be re-appointed as auditor of the Company

Registered address

Electricity North West Limited
304 Bnidgewater Place
Birchwood Park

Warrtngton

WA3 6XG

Registered number 2366949

Approved by the Board on
signed on its behalf by

;//Z,___

S Johnson
Director

May 2013 and
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of Electricity North West
Limited

We have audited the financial statements of
Electricity North West Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2013 which comprise the
Consoldated Income Statement and the
Consolidated and Company Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Financial Position,
Changes in Equity, Cash Flows and the related
notes 1 to 30 The financial reporting
framework that has been appled in ther
preparation 1s applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the parent company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s
members, as a body, In accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume respensibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditor

As explained more fully in the statement of
Directors’ responsibilities, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s
to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements In accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficcent to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error  This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropnate
to the group’s and the parent company’'s
circumstances and have been consistently
appled and adequately disclosed, the

reasonableness of significant accounting
estmates made by the directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements
In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to
wentify maternal inconsistencies with  the
audited financial statements If we become
aware of any apparent matenal misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimon

T the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group's and of the
parent company's affairs as at 31 March
2013 and of the Group’s profit for the year
then ended,

T the group financial statements have been
properly prepared n accordance with
{FRSs as adopted by the European Union,

T the parent company financial statements
have been properly prepared In
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as appled in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

T the financial statements have been
prepared In  accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given In the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
members of Electricity North West
Limited (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the
following matters where the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you If, In our
opInion

T adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the parent company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by
us, or

® the parent company financial statements
are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

T we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit

J&urdw

Jane Boardman BSc ACA

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Manchester, United Kingdom

28 M&j 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Note Group Group
2013 2012
£m £m
Revenue 2 468.0 404 6
Employee costs 34 (39.3) (35 3)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (net) 3 (85.5) {81 2)
Retall property provision charge 18 (20.6) -
Qther operating costs (97.2) {98 7)
Total operating expenses {242.6) (215 2)
Operating profit 3 225.4 189 4
Investment Income 5 4.4 44
Finance expense (net) 6 {54.3) (138 8)
Profit before taxation 175.5 550
Taxation 7 {28.5) 147
Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders 25 147.0 697

The results shown in the consolidated income statement for the current and preceding years are

derived from continuing operations

46




Electricity North West Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

at 31 March 2013
Group Company Group Company
Note 2013 2013 2012 2012
ASSETS £m Em £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets and goodwill 9 29.2 29.2 375 375
Property, plant and equipment 10 2,559.6 2,559.6 2,4307 24337
Investments 11 - 15.4 - 154

2,588.8 2,604.2 24682 24866

Current assets

Inventories 12 5.2 5.2 68 68
Trade and other receivables 13 60.7 60.6 537 537
Money market deposits 14 - - 250 250
Cash and cash equivalents 14 68.5 68.5 59 Q 590
Current tax asset - - 149 14 9
134.4 1343 159 4 159 4
Total assets 2,723.2 2,738.5 2,627 6 2,646 0
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 (139.3) (154.9) {1512) (166 9)
Derivative financial instruments 16 {31.7) (31.7) - -
Provisions 18 {8.5) (8.5) - -
Current ncome tax habilities {18.3) (18.3) - -
{197.8) (213.4) (151 2) (166 9)
Net current (liabilities)/assets {63.4) {79.1) 82 (7 5)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 15 (1,112.8) {(1,1128) (1,0870) (1,0870)
Dervative financial instruments 16 (65.3) {65.3) {126 1) (126 1)
Provisions 18 (11.5) {11.5) - -
Deferred tax 21 (210.1) (210.1) {238 0) (238 7)
Customer contnbutions 22 (486.5) {486.5) {470 3) (470 3}
Refundable customer deposits 23 (3.1) 3.1 34) (34)
Retirement benefit obligations 20 (105.8) {105.8) (14 2) {14 2)
(1,995.1) (1,9951) (1,8380) (1,9397)
Total liabilities (2,192.9) (2,208.5) (2,0902) (2,1066)
Total net assets 530.3 530.0 537 4 539 4
EQUITY
Called up share captal 24 238.4 2384 238 4 238 4
Share prermum account 25 4.4 4.4 44 44
Revaluation reserve 25 105.7 105.7 107 9 107 9
Capital redemption reserve 25 8.6 86 86 86
Retained earnings 25 173.2 172.9 178 1 180 1
Total equity 530.3 530.0 537 4 539 4

The financal statements of Electricity North West Limited (registered number 2366949) were
approved by the Board of D |r ctors on May 2013 and signed on its behalf by

S Johnson
Director 5//
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME for the year ended 31 March 2013

Group Group
2013 2012
Note Em £m
Profit for the financial year 147.0 697
Other comprehensive (expenses)income
Actuanal losses on
defined benefit pension schemes 20 {113.3) (18 6)
Deferred tax on actuanal losses on defined
benefit pension schemes taken directly to equity 21 26.0 44
Adjustment due to change in future tax rates of
brought forward deferred tax asset taken directly 21 (0.8) (12)
to equity
Other comprehensive expense
for the year {88.1) (15 4)
Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to equity holders 58.9 54 3
Company Company
2013 2012
Note £m £m
Profit for the financial year 144.7 697
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income
Actuanal losses on
defined benefit pension schemes 20 (113.3) (18 6)
Deferred tax on actuanal losses on defined
benefit penston schemes taken directly to equity 21 26.0 44
Adjustment due to change in future tax rates of
brought forward deferred tax asset taken directly 21 {0.8) (12)
to equity
Other comprehensive expense
for the year (88.1) (15 4)
Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to equity holders 56.6 543
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 March 2013

Group
Called Share Capital
up share premium Revaluation redemption Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve earnings Equity
£m £m £m £m Em £m

At 1 Apnl 2011 238 4 44 109 9 86 1838 5451
Prefit for the year - - - - 697 697
Transfer from
revaluation reserve - - (2 0) - 20 -
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit schemes - - - - (186) (186)
Tax on components of
comprehensive Income - - - - 32 32
Total comprehensive
{expense)iincome for the year - - {2.0) - 56.3 54.3
Transactions with owners
recorded directly in equity
Equity dividends {(note 8) - - - - (620) (820)
At 31 March 2012 238 4 44 107 9 86 178 1 5374
Prefit for the year - - - - 1470 1470
Transfer from
revaluation reserve - - (22) - 22 -
Actuanal fosses on
defined benefit schemes
{note 20) - - - - (1133) (1133)
Tax on components of
comprehensive income - - - - 252 252
Total comprehensive
(expense)/income for the year - - (2.2) - 61.1 58.9
Transactions with owners
recorded directly in equity
Equity dvidends (note 8) - - - - (660) (660)
At 31 March 2013 238.4 4.4 105.7 8.6 173.2 5303
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 March 2013

Company
Called Share Capital
up share premium Revaluation redemption Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve earnings  Equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2011 2384 44 1099 86 1858 547 1
Profit for the year - - - - 697 697
Transfer from
revaluation reserve - - (20) - 20 -
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit schemes - - - - (18 6) (18 6)
Tax on components of
comprehensive iIncome - - - - 32 32
Total comprehensive
{expense)lincome for
the year - - (2.0) - 56.3 54.3
Transactions with
owners recorded
directly in equity
Equity dividends (note 8) - - - - {62 0) (62 0)
At 31 March 2012 2384 44 1079 86 180 1 5394
Profit for the year - - - - 144 7 1447
Transfer from
revaluation reserve - - 22) - 22 -
Actuanal losses on
defined benefit schemes .
{note 20) - - - - (1M33) (1133)
Tax on components of
comprehensive income - - - - 252 252
Total comprehensive
(expenses)/income for
the year - - {2.2) - 58.8 56.6
Transactions with
owners recorded
directly in equity
Equity dividends (note 8) - - - - {66 0) {66 0)
At 31 March 2013 2384 4.4 105.7 8.6 172.9 530.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Group  Company Group Company
Note 2013 2013 2012 202
£m Em £m £m
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 289.4 2894 2319 2319
Interest paid {47.5) (47.5) (46 9) (46 9)
Tax received/(paid) 21 21 (15 2) (15 2)
Net cash generated from operating
activities 2440 244.0 169 8 169 8
Investing activities
Interest received and similar income 0.7 0.7 14 14
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (212.8) {212.8) (222 0) (222 0)
Purchase of intangible assets - - (0 8) (0 8)
Acquisitron of subsidiary, deferred
consideration - - (20) (20)
Customer contributions received 28.4 284 303 303
Proceeds from sale of
property, plant and equipment 0.5 0.5 06 06
Net cash used in investing activities {183.2) (183.2) (192 5) (192 5)
Financing activities
Transfer from money market deposits 25.0 25.0 150 150
Receipt on close out of swap - - 18 18
Accretion payment (10.3) {(10.3) - -
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of
the Company (66.0) {66.0) (62 0) (62 0)
Net cash used in financing activities (51.3) (51.3) (45 2) (45 2)
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and
cash equivalents 9.5 9.5 (67 9) (67 9)
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 14 59.0 59.0 126 9 126 9
Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year 14 68.5 68.5 590 590
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Electricity North West Limited 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies
Act

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The pnncipal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS’') as adopted for use in the Eurcpean Union, including International Accounting
Standards ('IAS’) and interpretations 1ssued by the International Financial Reporting interpretations
Committee (‘IFRIC")

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of
financial instruments, and certain property, plant and equipment

The preparation of financial statements, in conforrmity with generally accepted accounting principles
('GAAP") under IFRS, requires management to make estmates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilihes at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting year Although these estimates are based on
management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ
from these estimates

Basis of preparation - going concern basis

When considering continuing to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and
consolidated financial statements, the Directors have taken into account a number of factors,
including the following

+ Management has prepared, and the Directors have reviewed, updated Group forecasts for the
remainder of the DPC5 penod (as at 31 March 2013) which include projections and cash flow
forecasts, including covenant compliance considerations The forecasts include appropriate
assumptions on the efficiencies forecast from bustness transformation Inherent in forecasting I1s
an element of uncertainty, our forecasts have been sensiised for possible changes n the key
assumptions, including RPI and over/under recovenes of allowed revenue, and demonstrate that
there 1s sufficient headroom to key covenants and that sufficient resources are available within the
forecast pernod

= The Company’'s electricity distribution licence includes the obligation in standard condition 40 to
mantain an investment grade 1ssuer credit rating

¢ Under section 3A of the Electricity Act 1989, the Gas and Electricity Markets Authonty has a duty,
in carrying out its functions, to have regard to the need to secure that licence holders are able to
finance their activities, which are the subject of obligations imposed by or under Part 1 of the
Electricity Act 1989 or the Utiities Act 2000

» The Group and Company have considerable financial resources Short-term liquidity requirements
are forecast to be met from the Company's normal operating cash flow Further hquidity 1s
provided by cash and short-term deposit balances Furthermore, committed undrawn bank
faciites are available from lenders of £50m within ENWL and £121 4m in North West Electnicity
Networks Limited which have a matunty of more than one year Whilst the utilisation of these
faciibes 1s subject to gearing covenant restrictions the covenants are not forecast to pose any
operational restnctions

Consequently, after making appropriate enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
The Group has net current liabilities, however it 1s part of the North West Electricity Networks (Jersey)
Limited Group which 1s in a net asset positon  Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in prepanng the Annual Report and consolidated financial statements
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Notes (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation — going concern basis (continued)

The going concern basis has been adopted by the directors with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary, that has been prepared in accordance with *Going Concern and Liquidity
Risk Guidance for Directors of UK companies 2009’ published by the Financial Reporting Council in
October 2009

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year the following new and revised standards and interpretations have heen adopted
and have affected the amounts reported in these financial statements

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

These financial statements are the first financial statements in which the company has early adopted
IFRS 13 ‘Farr Value Measurement' in advance of the latest effective date, being annual periods
beginning on or after the 1 January 2013 IFRS 13 has been applied prospectively The Standard
defines fair value on the basis of an ‘exit price’ notion and uses a 'far value hierarchy’, which results in
a market-based, rather than entity-specific, measurement This change has led to a change in the
methodology the Group uses to value its index-linked swaps

The farr value methodology for dervative financial instruments under IFRS 13 has been amended in
the year to take into account the non-performance risk inherent within the instruments held for both
assets and labiities Determination of the non-performance nisk I1s based on the transaction price for
similar instruments or market data on appropriate credit spreads for the Group and counterparties
This change 1in methodology has had an impact in the year of a £109 4m gain on the net finance
expense line on the income statement, and correspondingly reducing the amounts shown n the
dernvative financial instruments hne under non-current habilities on the statement of financial position
The impact of this change in future penods 1s not disclosed as it is impractical to estmate

Other Standards

In the current year, the Group also adopted Amendments to IAS 12, 'Income Taxes’, which had no
impact on the amounts reported or the presentation and disclosure in the financial statements
However it may impact the accounting for future transacttons and arrangements

Recently issued accounting pronouncements - International Financial Reporting Standards

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following relevant standards and
interpretations were In 1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the
EU) The Directors anticipate that the Group will adopt these standards and nterpretations at therr
effective dates

IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’,

IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’,

IFRS 11, ‘Joint Arrangements’,

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities’,

Amendment to IFRS 1, ‘First time adoption’ on government loans,

Amendment to IFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’,

Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial Statement Presentation’ regarding other comprehensive
income,

Amendment to IAS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’,

» Amendment to IAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments Presentation’ regarding offsetting financial
assets and financial habilities,
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Notes (continued)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Recently issued accounting pronouncements - International Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

IAS 27 (revised 2011), ‘Separate Financial Statements’,

IAS 28 (revised 2011), ‘Associates and Joint Ventures',

Improvements to IFRSs (2012}, and

IFRIC 20, ‘Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine'

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have no matenial
impact on the Group's financial statements, except as follows

« Amendment to IAS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’ will impact the measurement of various
components representing movements in the defined benefit pension obhgation and
associated disclosures, but not the company’s total obigation It i1s likely that following the
replacement of expected returns on plan assets with a net finance cost in the income
statement, the profit for the period will be reduced and accordingly other comprehensive
income Increased Beyond this, 1t 1s not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of this standard until a detailed review has been completed

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiantes), made up to 31 March each year

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropnate

Subsidiaries

Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies,
generally accompanied by a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts, of an invested
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activites On acquisition, the assets and liabilites and
conbingent labiliies of a subsidiary are measured at their far values at the date of acquisiion Any
excess of the cost of acquisition over the far values of the identifiable net assets acquired Is
recogrused as goodwill If the cost of acquisition 1s below the farr values of the identifiable net assets
acquired the difference Is recognised as negative goodwill and immediately written-off and credited to
the income statement in the year of acquisition All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are elimihated on consolidation Investments In subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where
appropnate, provisions for impairrment

Business combinations and goodwill

The acquisition of subsidianies 1s accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the
acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
habities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 1ssued by the group In exchange for control of
the acquiree plus any cosis drrectly attributable to the business combination The acquiree's
identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognmition under
IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date All costs associated with business
combinations are expensed to the iIncome statement

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s nterest in the net farr value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent labilites recognised If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net farr value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, habilites and contingent habilihes
exceeds the cost of the business combination, then the negatve goodwill is recognised, but
immediately written-off to the iIncome statement Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units and 1s
not amortised but I1s tested annually for mparrment Goodwill Is considered as having an indefinite
useful life
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Notes (continued)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and are amortised on a straight-ine basis over their
estimated useful ives Carrying amount 1s reduced by any provision for impairment where necessary

Amaortisation periods for categones of intangible assets are
Computer software 3-10 years

intangible assets under construction are not amortised Amortisation commences from the date the
intangible asset 1s avallable for use

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment compnses operationat structures and other assets (including
properties, over ground plant and equipment and electricity operational assets)

Operational structures

Infrastructure assets are depreciated by wniting off ther deemed cost less the estimated residual
value, evenly over therr useful lives, which range from 5 to 80 years Employee costs incurred In
implementing the capital schemes of the Group are capitalised within operational structure assets

in 1997 the Company undertook a revaluation of certain assets due to a business combination This
resulted in the creation of a revaluation reserve of £234 9m The additional depreciation created as
result of the revaluation i1s transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings on an annual
basis

Other assets
All other property, plant and equipment I1s stated at histoncal cost less accumulated depreciation

Historical cost includes expenditure that i1s directly attributable to the acquisition of the items
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement durning the financial year in which they are incurred

Freehold land and assets In the course of construction are not depreciated Other assets are
depreciated by wniting off their cost evenly over therr estimated useful lives, based on management's
Jjudgement and experience, which are principally as follows

Buildings 30-60 years
Fixtures and equipment, vehicles and other 340 years

Depreciation methods and useful lives are re-assessed annually and, if necessary, changes are
accounted for prospectively

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in the income
statement
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Notes (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each reporting
date to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets may have suffered an impairment
loss An intangible asset with an indefinite life 1s tested for impairment at least annually and whenever
there 1s an indication of impairment If any such indication exsts, the recoverable amount of the asset
1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, If any Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell, and value in use Value In use
represents the net present value of expected future cash flows discounted on a pre-tax basis using a
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverahle amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} 1s estmated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to its
recoverable amount Impairment of non-current assets 15 recogmsed in the income statement within
operating costs Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the reversal is recognised In the
income statement and the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but not so as to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in pnor years

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 1s based on weighted
average cost and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, conversion costs and
other costs in bringing them to their existing location and condition

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised n the Group's statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade receivables

Trade recewvables are stated at nominal value with any allowances made for any estmated
Irrecoverable amounts

Trade payables
Trade payables are stated at therr nominal value
Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement and related notes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
at bank and in hand, deposits, other short-term highly liquid nvestments which are readily convertible
on mtial investment into known amounts of cash within three months and which are subject to an
insignificant nsk of change in value

Money market deposits

Money market deposits with terms to matunty in excess of three months are not included as cash or
cash equivalents and are separately disclosed on the face of the statement of financial position
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
Financial investments

Investments (other than interests in subsidianies and fixed deposits) are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis and are initially measured at fair value, including transaction costs Investments
are classified as avallable-for-sale and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at far value
Gains and losses arsing from changes in far value are recognised directly in equity, until the security
Is disposed of or 18 determined to be imparred, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised In equity 1s included m the net profit or loss for the year

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or
sale of a financial asset 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss,
which are initially measured at fair value

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories financial assets ‘at farr value
through profit or loss' (FVTPL) and ‘loans and receivables’ The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and 1s determined at the time of initial recognition

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest ncome over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropnate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on inhal recognition

Income 15 recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabiities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity instrument i1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its labilities Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds recewed, net of direct Issue
costs Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue
costs, are accounted for on an amortised cost basis to the income statement using the effective
interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not
settled in the year in which they arnse

The effective interest rate 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial hability and of
allocating interest expense to the relevant year The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial iability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period The Group derecognises financial habilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire

Borrowing costs and finance income

All borrowing costs and finance income that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, 1ssue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability are recognised in the iIncome statement in the year in
which they are incurred Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 1ssue of a
financial asset or financial liability are included in the initial fair value of that instrument
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs and finance income (continued)

Under IAS 23 borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capifalised A qualfying asset 1s any major project with a projected timescale of
greater than 12 months Capitalisation commences when activities are undertaken to prepare the
asset for use, and expenditure and borrowing costs are being incurred Capitalisation ceases when
substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare the intended asset for its intended use or sale
are complete

Borrowing costs capitalised in the year under IAS 23 were £0 3m (2012 £0 6m), using an average
annual capitalisation rate of 5 4% (2012 6 9%)

Derivatives and borrowings

The Group's default treatment 1s for borrowings to be carned at amortised cost, whilst derivatives are
recognised separately on the statement of financial position at fairr value with movements in those farr
values reflected through the income statement This has the potential to Introduce considerable
volatility to both the iIncome statement and statement of financial position

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, or host contracts, are treated as separate
denvatives when their nsks and charactenistics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL

An embedded denvative I1s presented as a non-current asset or non-current liabiiity if the remaining
matunity of the hybnd instrument to which the embedded denvative relates 1s more than 12 months
and 1s not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months

The Group s therefore subject to volatility in the iIncome statement due to changes 1n the fair values
of the denvative financial instruments Further information 1s provided 1n note 16 to the financial
statements

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’)

The Group applied the fair value through profit or loss option to the £250m 8 875% 2026 bond upon
inihial recognition as the complexity of the associated swaps at that tme meant that the cnteria to
allow hedge accounting was not met and the otherwise inconsistent accounting treatment that would
have resulted allowed the Group to satisfy the criteria for this designation

Financial labiities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses on re-measurement
recognised In the income statement The net gain or loss recognised in the income statement
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liabilities and 1s included in the interest charge Faw
value 1s determined in the manner described in note 16

The Group elects to designate a financial hability at inception as far value through the income
statement on the basis that it meets the conditions specfied in IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments
Recognition and measurement’

in the year the Group has elected to adopt IFRS 13 which provides clarity around the methodology for
measuring farr value The Group now applies the definition of fair value on the basis of an ‘exit price’
notion and uses a 'fair value hierarchy', which results in a market-based, rather than entity-specific,
measurement This change has lead to a change in the methodology the Group uses to value index-
Iinked swaps

58




Electricity North West Limited
Consoldated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss {‘FVTPL’) (confinued)

The farr value methodology for denvative financial instruments under IFRS 13 has been amended In
the year to take into account the non-performance nisk inherent within the instruments held for both
assets and habilihes Determination of the non-performance risk 1s based on the transaction price “for
similar instruments or market data on appropnate credit spreads for the Group and counterparties
This change in methodology has resulted in financial habilities for the denvatives being valued
£109 4m lower than they would have been had we not elected to adopt IFRS 13 The impact of this
change tn future periods is not disclosed as it 1Is mpractical to estimate

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Interest rate and index linked swap agreements are used to manage interest rate exposure The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes

All financial derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the denvative contract Is
entered Into and are subsequently re-measured to their farr value at each statement of financial
position date Changes in the far value of all denvative financial instruments are recognised in the
income statement within finance expense as they anse, the Group does not currently designate
dervatives into hedging relationships and apply hedge accounting

Hedge accounting

There are two types of hedge accounting strategies that the Group considers, a fair value hedge and
a cash flow hedge Currently the Group has no formal hedging relationships

Operating profit

Operating profit 1s stated after charging operating expenses but before investment income, net
finance expense and other gains and losses

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax charges for the financial year,
adjusted for prior year items

Current taxation

Current tax, representing UK corporation tax, 1s based on the taxable profit for the year and is
provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered} using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial positton date Taxable profit differs
from the net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and # further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilies in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax habiites are provided, using the hability method, on all
taxable temporary differences at the statement of financial position date Such assets and liabtlities
are not recognised If the temporary difference anses from goodwtll or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments n
subsidianes except where the Group I1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
Is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Deferred taxation (continued)

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the years in which the
temporary timing differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent
that it 1s no longer more likely than not that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the iIncome statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with
in other comprehensive Income

Employee benefits - Retirement benefit obligations

The Group’s defined pension benefit arrangements are provided through a division of the Electricity
Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS) The most recent actuanal valuation for the scheme for funding
purposes was carried out at 31 March 2010 and actuanal valuations will be carned out thereafter at
intervals of not more than three years The 31 March 2013 report 1s being completed and expected to
be finalised before 31 March 2014 The pension cost under |AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' 1s assessed in
accordance with the advice of a firm of actuaries The assumptions are disclosed in note 20 of the
financial statements Results are affected by the actuartal assumptions used These assumptions
include those made for investment returns on the scheme’s assets, discount rates, pay growth and
Increases to pensions in payment and deferred pensions, and ife expectancy for scheme members
Actual experience may differ from the assumptions made, for example, due to changing market and
economic conditions and longer or shorter lives of participants Defined benefit assets are measured
at fairr value while habilittes are measured at present value The difference between the two amounts
15 recognised as a surplus or obligation in the statement of financial position

The cost of providing pension benefits to employees relating to the current year's service and the
difference between the expected return on scheme assets and interest on scheme liabilities are
included within the income statement within employee costs

All actuarial gains and losses are recogmsed outsikle the income statement in retained earnings and
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

In addition, the Group also operates a defined contnbution pension scheme Payments are charged to
the income statement as employee costs as they fall due The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid

IFRIC14 'The hmit on a defined benefit asset, mmmum fundng requirements and their interaction’
was publshed by the interpretations committee of the Intemational Accounting Standards Board in
July 2007 and was adopted during the year ended 31 March 2008 IFRIC14 provides guidance on
the extent to which a pension scheme surplus should be recognized as an asset and may also require
addttional hiabilities to be recognised where minimum funding requirements exist Legal opinton was
obtained that a pension surplus could be recovered on wind up of the scheme and could therefore be
recognised, along with associated habilities At the current time, this interpretation does not affect the

group
Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the farr value of the income recevable n the ordinary course of business
primarily for the distnbution of electrnicity dunng the year, exclusive of value-added tax Revenue
includes an assessment of the volume of unbilled energy distrbuted to customers between the date of
the last meter reading and the year end Remaining sales relate to the invoice value of other goods
and services provided which also relate to the electricity network

Where turnover received or receivable exceeds the maxmum amount permitted by regulatory
agreement adjustments will be made to future pnces to reflect this over-recovery, no hability 1s
recognised as such an adjustment to future prices relates to the provision of future services Similarly
no asset 1s recognised where a regulatory agreement permits adjustments to be made to future prices
in respect of an under-recovery
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition {contmnued)}

The Group recognises revenue generally at the time of delivery and when collection of the resulting
receivable 1s reasonably assured Payments received in advance of revenue recognition are recorded
as deferred revenue

Customer contributions

Contributions receivable in respect of property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred income,
which Is credited to the income statement over the estimated economic hives of the related assets
Amortisation of contributions received post 1 July 2009 s shown as revenue rather than within
operating costs following the adoption of IFRIC 18

Refundable customer deposits

Refundable customer deposits received In respect of property, plant and equipment are held as a
hability until repayment conditions ceme into effect and the amounts are repaid to the customer or
otherwise credited to customer contributions

Leases

Cperating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the penod
of the lease

Research and development

Research and development costs are written off to the income statement as incurred

Critical accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the Group 1s required to make certain
estimates, judgements and assumptions that it believes are reasonable based upon the information
available These estmates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabihties at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
years presented

On an ongoing basis, the Group evaluates its estimates using historical expenence, consultation with
experts and other methods considered reasonable in the particular circumstances Actual results may
differ significantly from the estimates, the effect of which i1s recognised in the year in which the facts
that give nse to the revision become known

The following policies are those cntical judgements which the Group believes have the most
significant impact on the annual results under IFRS

Carrying value of long-Iife assets

The Group's accounting policy for property, plant and equipment ('PPE’) 1s detalled above The
carrying value of PPE under IFRS as at 31 March 2013 was £2,559 6m (2012 £2,430 7m} Additions
to PPE, totalled £217 2m (2012 £220 3m) and the depreciation charge was £88 2m (2012 £83 9m)
in the year ended 31 March 2013 The estimated useful economic lives of PPE are based on
management's judgement and expenence When management identify that the actual useful lives
differ maternially from the estimates used to calculate depreciation, that charge 15 adjusted
prospectively Due to the significance of PPE investment to the Company, vanations between actual
and estimated useful lives could impact operating results both positively and negatively, although
histonically, few changes to estimated useful ives have been required

In accordance with IFRS, the Company 1s required to evaluate the carrying values of PPE for
impairment whenever circumstances indicate, in management’s judgement, that the carrying value of
such assets may not be recoverable An impairment review requires management to make subjective
judgements concerning the cash flows, growth rates and discount rates of the cash-generating units
under review
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Critical accounting policies {continued)
Carrying value of long-iife assels (continued)

In the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Directors have assessed the carrying value of both
tangible and intangible fixed assets in accordance with the principles of IAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets'
This review was underpinned by value in use calculations on the recoverable amounts of the cash
generating units (CGUs) For the purpose of mpairment testing the Group have determined that there
is only one CGU and, due to favourable cperating cash flows betng forecast to the end of DPC5 and
beyond, no impairment exists Furthermore, management have completed a review of tangible fixed
assets for materal obsolescence and/or physical damage and no indication of imparment was
dentified

Revenue recognition

Under IFRS, the Company recognises revenue generally at the tme of delivery and when collection of
the resulting receivable 1s reasonably assured Should management consider that the cnitena for
revenue recognthion are not met for a transaction, revenue recognition would be delayed until such
time as the transaction becomes fully earned Payments received 1n advance of revenue recognition
are recorded as deferred revenue The Company raises bills and recognises revenue in accordance
with its entittement to receive revenue In ine with the limits established by the pernodic regulatory
price review processes

The principal customers of the business are the electricty supply companies that utilise the
Company's distribution network to distribute electricity from generators to the end consumer
Revenue from such activity 1s known as ‘use of system’ The amount billed 1 dependent upon the
volume of electricity distnbuted, including estimates of the units distnbuted to customers The
estimated usage 1s based on historical data, judgement and assumptions Operating revenues are
gradually adyjusted to reflect actual usage n the penod over which the meters are read

Taxation

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires judgements to be made regarding the
application of tax law and the results of negotiations with, and enquiries from tax authonties

Accounting for provisions and contingencies

The Group I1s subject to a number of claims incidental to the normal conduct of its business, relating to
and including commercial, contractual and employment matters, which are handled and defended In
the ordinary course of business The Group routinely assesses the likelihood of any adverse
Judgements or outcomes to these matters as well as ranges of probable and reasonably estimated
losses Reascnable estimates nvolve judgements made by management after considering
information including notifications, settlements, estimates performed by independent parties and legal
counsel, available facts, identificaton of other potentially responsible parttes and therr ability to
contribute, and prior experience A provision s recognised when it 1s probable that an obligation
exists for which a reliable estimate can be made of the obhigation after careful analysis of the
individual matter The required provision may change in the future due to new developments and as
addihional information becomes available Matters that either are possible oblgations or do not meet
the recognition critenia for a provision are disclosed, unless the possibility of transfernng economic
benefits 1s remote

Property provision

ENWL held the leasehold title to a number of retait properties as a result of its legacy retall operations
whilst trading as Norweb Pic The Company assigned the majonty of these to a third party in 1996
However, the third party went into administration duning the year and ENWL still has a potental
hability for lease obligations under privity of contract rules for these retal properties The retail
properttes have lease expiry dates ranging from 2013 to 2021 The Directors have recognised a
provision based on the probable financial exposure, having consulted with both internal and external
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Critical accounting policies (continued)
Property provision (continued)

property advisors and property management agents Further information on the judgements involved
Is provided In note 18 to the financial statements

Refrement benefits

The pension cost under IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ is assessed in accordance with the advice of a
firm of actuaries The assumptions are disclosed In note 20 of the financial statements Resulis are
affected by the actuanal assumptions used These assumptions include those made for investment
returns on the schemes' assets, discount rates, pay growth and increases to pensions in payment and
deferred pensions, and life expectancy for scheme members Actual experience may differ from the
assumptions made, for example, due to changing market and economic conditions and longer or
shorter lives of participants

Fair values of denvative financial instruments

The Group uses denvative financial instruments to manage the exposure to interest rate nisk and
bond 1ssues The Board has authonised the use of dernivatives by the Group te reduce the nsk of loss
arnsing from changes in market risks, and for economic hedging reasons All financial derivatives are
inttially recognised at fair value at the date the denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to therr farr value at each statement of financial position date Changes in the fair value
of all denvative financial instruments that are not in a hedging refationship are recogrised in the
income statement within finance expense as they arise

The Group 15 therefore subject to volatility in the iIncome statement due to changes in the fair values
of the derivative financial instruments Further information on the judgements involved i1s provided In
note 16 to the financial statements

Impairment of goodwill

On acquisttion of business combinations, assessment 1s required as to whether the Group has
acquired any intangible assets as part of the acquisiton, and subsequent measurement of any
intangible assets must be made

In 2010 the Group acquired the share capital of ENWSL On acquisition, in line with IFRS 3
requirements, management has performed a review for intangibles as part of the assessment of fair
values For an intangible asset to be recogmised it must be possible to separately identify it and also
to reliably measure the value Management did not identify any intangible assets ansing as a result of
the acquisition of ENWSL, and consequently the excess of the total consideration over acquired net
assets, after farr value adjustments, of £10 1 million was recognised as goodwill

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value In use of the cash
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated The value in use calculation requires the entity
to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value The value in use calculation performed concludes
that no imparment loss 1s required against this goodwill The carrying amount of goodwill at the
statement of financial position date was £10 1m

Impairment of intangibles

Management assesses the recoverability of intangible assets on an annual basis Determining
whether any of the intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
asset to the Group This value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to anse from the asset and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
for the asset and compare that calculation to its carrying value
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2 REVENUE

Group 2013 2012
£m £m

Revenue 468.0 404 6

Predominantly all Group revenues arise from electncity distribution in the North West of England and
assoctated activites Only one operating segment I1s therefore regularly reviewed by the Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Leadership Team Included within the above are revenues of
approximately £345 9m (2012 £306 1m) which arose from sales to the Group’s five (2012 five)
largest customers Customer 1 represented £108 4m (2012 £98 2m), Customer 2 £94 4m (2012
£78 7my}, Customer 3 £65 3m (2012 £56 3m), Customer 4 £40 3m (2012 £37 8m) and Customer 5
£37 5m (2012 £35 1m) of revenues No other customer represented more than 10 per cent of
revenues either this year or prior year

3 OPERATING PROFIT
The following items have been included in arnving at the Group's operating profit

Group 2013 2012
£m £m

Employee costs
Employee costs (see note 4) 39.3 353

Depreciation and amortisation expense (net)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Owned assets (see note 10) 88.2 839
Amortisation of intangible assets and customer contributions

Software (see note 9) 8.3 83

Customer contributions' (see note 22) {11.0} (11 0)
Depreciation and amortisation expense {net) 85.5 812

Other income
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {0.6) (0 6)

Retail property provision charge (see note 18) {20.8) -

Other operating costs include:

Research and development 2.0 16
Restructunng costs® - 19
Operating leases

- land and buildings 09 13
- hire of plant and machinery 0.1 01

" In the current year £2 6m (2012 £1 9m) of customer contributions amortisation has been amortised through revenue in line
with IFRIC 18

2 Restructunng costs include severance costs of £l (2012 £1 9m)
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3 OPERATING PROFIT (continued)

Analysis of the auditor's remuneration Is as follows

Group Group
2013 2012
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor
and their associates for the audit of the
Company's annual accounts 0.1 01
Total audit fees 0.1 01
Audit-related assurance services 01 01
Taxation advisory services 0.2 -
Total non-audit fees 0.3 01
Total fees 0.4 02

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and therr associates for non-audit services to the Company are not
required to be disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such

fees on a consolidated basis
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4 EMPLOYEE COSTS
Group Group
2013 2012
£m £m
Wages and salares 70.9 705
Social secunty costs 6.8 70
Pension costs {(see note 20) 121 115
Employee costs (including Directors’
remuneration) 89.8 890
Costs transferred directly to fixed assets {50.5) (537)
Charged to operating expenses 39.3 353
The average monthly number of employees during the year (including Executive Directors)
Group Group
2013 2012
Number Number
Electricity distribution 1,622 1,613
5 INVESTMENT INCOME
Group  Group
2013 2012
£m £m
Interest receivable on short-term bank deposits held at amortised cost 0.7 18
Expected return on pension scheme assets (see note 20) 523 524
Interest cost on pension scheme obligations (see note 20) (48.6) (49 8)
Net pension interest 3.7 26
Total investment income 4.4 44

66




Electricity North West Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes (continued)

6 FINANCE EXPENSE
2013 2012

Group £m £m
Interest payable
Interest payable on Group borrowings 17.0 170
Interest payable on borrowings held at amorhised
cost 224 228
Interest payable on borrowings designated
at fair value through profit or loss 222 222
Net receipts on derivatives held for trading (13.5) (14 1)
Other finance charges related to
index-linked bonds 8.2 123
Capitalisation of borrowing costs under IAS 23 (0.3) (06)
Total interest expense 56.0 5986
Movements on financial instruments
Far value movement on borrowings designated
at farr value through profit or loss 17 1 302
Far value movement on dervatives held for
trading (29 1) 508
Accretion payable on index-linked swaps 103 -
Cash settlement on close-out of amortising swaps - (18)
Total fair value movements {(1.7) 792
Total finance expense 54.3 138 8

In respect of the movement i the fair value of borrowings designated as at far value through profit or
loss, a £17 1m loss (2012 £302m loss),which includes a £60m loss (2012 £8 6m gan) Is
attnbutable to changes in credit spread assumptions which 15 partially offset by changes in interest
rates and therefore interest payable
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7 TAXATION
Group Group
2013 2012
£m £m
Current tax
Current Year 331 121
Prior year (1.9) (94)
Deferred tax (see note 21)
Current year 104 18
Prior year {2.3) 21
Impact of change in future tax rates (10.8) (21 3)
Tax charge/(credit) for the year 28.5 (14 7)

Corporation tax Is calculated at 24% (2012 26%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year

The prior year corporation tax credit arises as a result of changes between the estmated tax position
in the prior year statutory financial statements and the final tax computation position due primarily to
work done during the year on the optimisatton of capital allowance and research and development tax

claams This i1s partly offset by the prior year deferred tax charge

The March 2013 Budget announced that the UK corporation tax main rate will further reduce to 21%
from April 2014 and to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 The total deferred tax credit in respect of the change

from 24% to a 20% tax rate is expected to be Iin the region of £40m

The deferred tax habihty at 31 March 2013 has been calculated based on the rate of 23%

substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date
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7 TAXATION (continued)

The table below reconciles the notional tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate to the effective tax
rate for the year

Group Group

2013 2012

£m £m
Profit before tax 175.5 550

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 24%

(2012 26%) 421 14 3
Prior year tax adjustments (4.2) (7 3)
Reduction in cusrent year deferred tax due to rate change (0.3) -
Non taxable expense/{income) 1.7 (0 4)
Impact from change in future tax rates {10.8) (21 3)
Tax charge/{credit) for the year 28.5 (14 7)

In addition to the amount charged to the Income Statement, deferred tax relating to actuanal gains on
defined benefit schemes of £26 Om credit (2012 £4 4m credit) and deferred tax due to changes in
future tax rates of the brought forward deferred tax asset of £0 8m charge (2012 £1 2m charge) were
taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

8 DIVIDENDS
Amounts recegnised as distnbutions to equity holders in the year compnise

2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Intenm dividends paid dunng the year ended 31 March 2013 of
13 84 pence per share (31 March 2012 13 00 pence per share} 66.0 620

At the current and prior year ends, there were no propesed final dividends subject to approval by
equity holders of the Company and, hence, no hability has been included in the financial statements at
31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 respectively

On 24 May 2013, the Board of Directors approved an intenim dividend for the financial year ending 31
March 2014, of £15m, (3 15 pence per share) payable in June 2013 This dividend has not been
included as a liability in these financial statements
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
Assets under
the course of

Goodwill Software construction Total
Group and Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 101 380 59 540
Additions - - 08 08
Reclassification from Tangibles to
Intangibles’ - - 152 152
Transfers - 185 (18 &) -
Disposals - {18) - {18)
At 31 March 2012 101 547 34 68 2
Additions - 01 - 01
Transfers - 33 (33) -
Disposals - - 01) {0 1)
At 31 March 2013 101 58.1 - 68.2
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2011 - 242 - 242
Charge for the year - 83 - 83
Disposals - (18) - (18)
At 31 March 2012 - 307 - 307
Charge for the year - 83 - 83
Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2013 - 39.0 - 39.0
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 10.1 191 - 29.2
At 31 March 2012 10 1 240 34 375

' The reclassification between tangible and intangible assets was as a result of the large number of
ongoing ITRP projects at the last year end At 31 March 2011, although the total cost was known, the
split between tangible and intangibles (hardware and software) was unclear This split has been

determined in prior year and transferred accordingly
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL. (continued)

In the Company, Goodwill arose on the transfer of assets and habilities (the ‘hwve-up’) of ENWSL In
2010 Thus value reflects the excess of the investment over the book value of the trade and assets at
the date of hive-up and reflects the value of the business now within ENWL The value of the
investment was consequently reduced by this same amount

At 31 March 2013, the Group and Company had entered into no contractual commitments for the
acquisition of intangible assets (2012 £nl)

Impairment testing of Goodwill

The Group tests annually for impairment or more frequently If there are indications that intangible
assets with indefinite lives might be impaired The recoverable amounts of the cash generating unis
(CGUs) are determined from value in use calculations For the purposes of mparrment testing the
Group have determined that there I1s only one CGU The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding discount rates and the outcomes of future Ofgem price control
settlements

The Group has prepared cash flow forecasts for a 25 year period, which represents the notice period
on the licence to distribute electricity The rate used to discount cash flows was 7 56% (2012 7 56%)
reflecting an assumed level of nsk associated with the cash flows generated from the licence

Based on the imparment testing performed, management are comfortable that sufficient headroom
exists between the value 1n use and the carrying value of the assets such that no impairrment loss 1s
required to be booked
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Non Fixtures, Assets
operational equipment, under the
Operational land and vehicles and course of
Structures buildings other construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 Apnit 2011 3,080 1 128 350 2086 3,336 5
Additions 780 01 345 1077 2203
Transfers 925 01 {12 5) (80 1) -
Tangibles to Intangibles’ - - - (15 2) (15 2)
Disposals {(52) - (57) - (109)
At 31 March 2012 3,245 4 130 513 2210 3,6307
Additions 66 8 22 37 144 5 217 2
Transfers 888 02 71 (96 1) -
Disposals (4 9) - {17) - (6 6)
At 31 March 2013 3,396.1 15.4 60.4 269.4 3,741.3
Depreciation and
impairment
At 1 Apnl 2011 1,0035 40 195 - 1,027 0
Charge for the year 74 1 04 94 - 839
Disposals (52) - (67) - (109)
At 31 March 2012 1,072 4 44 232 - 1,100 0
Charge for the year 76 0 05 117 - 88 2
Disposals 49 - {16) - {6 5)
At 31 March 2013 1,143.5 49 33.3 - 1,181.7
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 2,252.6 105 2741 2694 2,559.6
At 31 March 2012 21730 86 281 2210 24307

At 31 March 2013, the Group and Company had entered into contractual commitments for the

acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting to £74 7m (2012 £87 9m restated)

'See note 9
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company
Non Fixtures and
operational equipment, Assets under
QOperational land and vehicles and the course of
Structures  buildings other construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1 Apnl 2011 3,083 1 128 350 2086 3,3395
Additions 780 01 345 107 7 2203
Transfers 925 01 (12 5) (80 1) -
Tangible to Intangibles’ - - - (15 2) (15 2}
Disposals {(52) - {67) - (10 9)
At 31 March 2012 3,248 4 130 513 2210 35337
Additions 638 22 37 144 5 214 2
Transfers 888 02 71 {96 1) -
Disposals {49 - {17 - (6 6)
At 31 March 2013 3,396.1 154 60.4 269.4 3,741.3
Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 Aprnil 2011 1,003 5 40 195 - 1,027 0
Charge for the year 741 04 94 - 839
Disposals (52) - (57} - (109
At 31 March 2012 1,072 4 44 232 - 1,100 0
Charge for the year 760 05 117 - 882
Disposals {4 9) - {16) - {6 5)
At 31 March 2013 1,143.5 4.9 333 - 1,181.7
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 2,252.6 105 271 269.4 2,559.6
At 31 March 2012 2,176 0 86 281 2210 2,4337

At 31 March 2013, had the property, plant and equipment of the Group been carned at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, the carrying amount would have
been approximately £2 424 4m (2012 £2,291 8m) The revaluation surplus 1s disclosed in note 25,
net of deferred tax The revaluation surplus arose following Norweb’s acquisition of North West

Water
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" INVESTMENTS

Group Company
£m £m

Cost and carrying value
At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 - 154

Detalls of the pnncipal investments as at 31 March 2013, all of which were incorporated in the UK, are
as follows To avoid a statement of excessive length, details of investments which are not significant
have been omitted

Company
Nature of
Description of holding Proportion held business
Subsidiary undertakings
Electricity North West Ordinary shares of £1 100% Dormant
Services Limited each
Nature of
Group and Company Description of holding Proportion held business
Associated undertaking
NorWeb Limited Ordinary shares of £1 50% Dormant
each
Joint ventures
Selectusonline Lirmited Ordinary shares of 66 67p 16 67% Planning and
each Procurement
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12 INVENTORIES
Group Company Group Company
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m Em £m £m
Raw matenals and consumables 5.2 52 68 68
13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company Group Company
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m
Trade receivables 6.1 6.1 65 65
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 4.3 4.3 03 03
Prepayments and accrued income 50.3 50.2 46 9 46 9
Balance at 31 March 60.7 60.6 537 537

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated net of allowances for doubtful receivables of
£0 3m (2012 £0 4m) estimated by management based on known specific circumstances, past default
expenence and their assessment of the current economic environment The average credit period

taken on sales 1s 14 days (2012 14 days)

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair
value Of the Group trade receivables, 31% (2012 23%) are past due but not mpaired The majority
of balances are less than 45 days past due, a balance of £0 5m 1s greater than 45 days past due at
31 March 2013 (2012 £1 5m), against which an allowance for doubtful debt of £0 3m (2012 £0 4m)

has been made

The movement on the provision for impairment of trade recewvables is as follows

Group Company Group Company

2013 2013 2012 2012

£m Em £m £m

Opening balance 04 04 01 01
(Credited)/charged to the iIncome statement {0.1) {0.1) 03 03
Utilised - - - -
Closing balance 03 0.3 04 04
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receiwvables comprise 356 (2012 488) individual customers The Group Is required by Ofgem to
accept any company that has obtained a trading licence regardless of therr credit status To mitigate
the nsk posed by this, all transactions with customers are governed by a contract which all customers
are required by Ofgem to sign and adhere to the terms

Under the terms of the contract, the maximum unsecured credit that the Group may be required to
give 1s 2% of the Regulatory Asset Value (‘RAV’) of the Company In addihon the contract makes
provisions for the credit quality of customers and adjusts the credit value avallable to them based on
credit ratings and payment history Where a customer exceeds their agreed credit level under the
contract the customer must provide collateral to mitigate the increased nsk posed As at 31 March
2013 £2 7m (2012 £2 9m) of cash had been received as secunty

The allowed RAV 1s set by Ofgem for each year of DPC5 (1 April 2010 to 31 March 2015) and 1s
£1,631 Om for the year ended 31 March 2013 based on March closing prices (2012 £1,519 2m)

At 31 March 2013 £91 2m (2012 £97 Om) of unsecured credit imits had been granted to customers
and the highest unsecured credit imit given to any single customer was £10 7m (2012 £9 9m) Al of
the customers granted credit of this level must have a credit rating of at least A- from Standard and
Poor's and A3 from Moody's Investor Services or a guarantee from a parent company of an
equivalent rating Alternatively, the customer must be able to prove their creditworthiness on an
ongoing basis

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to theur
fair value

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND MONEY MARKET DEPOSITS

2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Short-term bank deposits including cash at bank and n hand 68.5 590
Cash and cash equivalents 68.5 590
Short-term money market deposits {matunty over three months) - 250
68.5 840

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash at bank and in hand, deposits and other short-term highly
hquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a maturity of
three months or less, net of any bank overdrafts which are payable on demand Money market
deposits with terms to matunty in excess of three months are not included as cash or cash
equivalents and are separately disclosed on the face of the statement of financtal position

The effective interest rate on all short-term deposits was a weighted average of 0 6% (2012 1 25%)
and these deposits had an average matunty of 7 days (2012 245 days)
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15 BORROWINGS

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's loans and borrowings For
more information about the Group's exposure to credit nsk, iquidity nsk and market nsk see note 16

2013 2012
Group and Company £m £m
Non-current liabilities
Bonds 703.9 682 8
Bank and other term borrowings 145.6 141 2
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 67.4 67 4
Amounts owed to affilated’ undertaking 195.9 195 6

1,112.8 1,087 0

Carrying value by category
The carrying values by category of financial instruments were as follows

2013 2012
Year of Carrying Carrying
matunty value value
Group and Company £m £m
Borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss
8 875% £250m bond 2026 382.5 365 4
Borrowings measured at amortised cost
8 875% £200m bond 2026 195.7 1955
1 4746%+RPI? £100m index-linked bond 2046 125.7 1219
1 5911%+RPI* £135m index-linked loan 2024 145.9 1415
Amortising costs re Long term loans at LIBOR plus 0 70% 2017 (0.3) (03)
Amounts due to parent undertaking 2015 674 67 4
Amounts due to affilated' undertaking 2021 1959 1956
Other financial liabilities held at amortised cost 7303 72186

! Affihated companies being those owned by Companies above ENWL in the North West Electncity Networks (Jersey) Limited
consolidation group

2 RPI - Retail Prices Index — a UK general index of retail prices (for all items) as published by the Office for National Statistics
{January 1987 = 100)

All loans and borrowings are unsecured There is no formal bank overdraft faciity in place between
1 April 2011 and 31 March 2013 All borrowings are in sterling The fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments are shown in note 16

included within the borrowing note are capitalised facility arrangement fees of £0 3m (2012 £0 3m)
relating to the undrawn Revolving Credit Facilities

Borrowing facilities

The Group and Company had £50m (2012 £55m) in unutiised committed bank facilities at 31 March
2013 of which £nil expires within one year (2012 £nil), £nil expires after one year but less than two
years (2012 £5 0m) and £50m expires in more than two years (2012 £50m)
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument 1s a contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial
lability or equity in another entity The Group uses financial instruments to invest hquid asset
balances, raise funding and manage the risks arising from its operations

The principal nsks which the Group 1s exposed to and which anse in the normal course of business
include credit nsk, igwdity nsk and market nsk, in particular interest rate nsk and inflation nsk
Dervative financial instruments are used to change the basis of interest cash flows from fixed to
either inflation-linked or an alternative fixed profile to more accurately match the revenue profile

The Board has authonised the use of denvatives by the Group to reduce the nsk of loss arising from
changes in market nsks, and for econcmic hedging reasons

The accounting policy for denvatives 1s provided in note 1
Control over financial instruments

The Group has a formal nsk management structure, which includes the use of nisk imits, reporting
and monitonng requirements, mandates, and other control procedures It is currently the responsibility
of the Board to set and approve the nsk management procedures and controls

Risk management

All of the Group's activities involve analysis, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of nsks The most important types of financial nsk are credit nsk, hquidity nsk and market
rsk Market risk includes foreign exchange, interest rate, inflaton (RPI) and equity price nsks

The only matenal exposure the Group has to foreign exchange nsk or equity price nisk relates to the
assets of the defined benefit pension scheme, these are managed by the pension scheme investment
managers

The Group's nsk management policies are designed to dentify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate nsk hmits and controls and to monitor the rnisks and hmits continually by means of reliable
and up to date systems The Group modifies and enhances its nsk management policies and systems
to reflect changes in markets and products The Audit Committee 1s responsible for independently
overseeing the activittes in relation to Group nsk management ENWL's treasury function, which 1s
authorised to conduct the day-to-day treasury activities of the Group, reports on a regular basis to the
Committee The Group's processes for managing nisk and the methods used to measure risk have not
changed since the prior year In the year, there have been changes to the Group's policies in relation
to the management of credit nsk, nsk imits and mimimum credit ratings of counterparties have been
amended to reflect changes to market conditions and the associated level of perceved risks

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit nsk, which 1s the nsk that financial loss anses from the failure
of a customer or counterparty to meet its obligations under a contract as they fall due Credit nisk
anses pnncipally from trade finance and treasury activites The Group has dedicated standards,
policies and procedures to control and monttor credit nsk

The counterparties under treasury activibes consist of financial institutions In accordance with IAS 39,
the directors have considered and quantified the exposure of the Group to counterparty credit nsk and
do not consider there to be a matenal credit nisk adjustment required The exposure to counterparty
credit nisk will continue to be monitored Although the Group 1s potentially exposed to credit loss in the
event of non-performance by counterparties, such credit nisk s controlled through regular credit rating
reviews of the counterparties and by hmiting the total amount of exposure to any one parly
Management does not anticipate any counterparty will fail to meet 1ts obligations
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Significant changes In the economy or in the utiities sector could result in losses not necessarily
provided for at the statement of financial position date The total number of customers in 2013 was
356 (2012 488), however there are only five (2012 five) pnncipal customers, see note 2 The
creditworthiness of each of these I1s closely monitored Whilst the loss of one of the pnincipal
customers could have a significant impact on the Group, due to the small number of these, the
exposure to such credit losses would be mitigated 1in most cases by the protection the regulator
provides to cover such losses Nonetheless, the credit management process must be closely adhered
to, to avoid such circumstances, and the Group's management therefore closely monitor adherence to
this process

a) Trade recevables

Credit nsk in relation to trade recewvables 1s considered to be relatively low, due to the small number
of pnincipal customers, and the fact that each of these customers has a contract in place with the
Group, and 1s required to provide collateral in the form of a cash deposit subject to the amounts due
and their credit rating At 31 March 2013 there was £1 9m recevables past due (2012 £1 5m) against
which an allowance for doubtful debts of £0 3m has been made (2012 £0 4m)

b) Treasury investments

The Directors do not believe that the Group 1s exposed to any material concentrations of credit nsk in
relation to treasury investments {(including both amounts placed on deposit with counterparties and
asset interest rate swaps)

As at 31 March 2013 none (2012 none) of the Group's treasury pertfolio exposure was either past
due or impaired, and no terms had been re-negotiated wtth any counterparty The Group has imits in
place to ensure counterparties have a certain mimimum credit rating, and individual exposure imits to
ensure there 1$ no concentration of credit nsk

The table below provides details of the ratings of the Group’s treasury portfolio

2013 2013 2012 2012
Credit Rating £m % £m %
AAA 439 52.7 123 132
AA - - - -
AA- - - - -
A+ 149 17.9 150 16 1
A 244 29.4 659 707

83.2 100.0 932 1000

The rating profile of counterparties has decreased due to change in market conditions as a result of
global economic uncertainty To combat this, during the year there has been increased investment by
the Group into AAA rated hiquidity funds

At the statement of financial position date, no collateral 1s held in relation to Treasury assets
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivatives, in the statement of financial position For trade receivables, the value 1s net of
any coliateral held in cash deposits (see note 14 for further details)

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

Credit risk by category £m £m £m £m

Trade receivables 6.1 6.1 65 65

Cash and cash equivalents 685 68.5 590 590
Money market deposits (onginal matunty over

three months) - - 250 250

746 74.6 905 905

Trade receivables and cash and cash equwvalents are measured at cost Denvative financial
Instruments are measured at fair value in accordance with 1AS 39 and IFRS 13

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk i1s the nsk that the Group will not have sufficent funds to meet the obligations or
commitments resulting from its business operations or asscciated with its financial instruments, as
they fall due The Group manages the liquidity profile of its assets, llabiliies and commitments so that
cash flows are appropriately balanced and all funding obligations are met when due This 1s achieved
through maintaining a prudent level of hquid assets, and arranging funding facibties

The Beard 1s responsible for monitonng the matunty of hqudity and deposit funding balances and
taking any action as appropriate A long-term view of iquidity 1s provided by Group financial modeis
which project cash flows out 40 years ahead, and a medium-term view 15 provided by the five year
Group business plan, which 1s updated and approved annually by the Board Shorter-term liquidity 1s
monitored via an 18 month quidity projectton and this 1s reported to the Board The Board has
approved a liquidity framework within which the business operates

Available iquidity at 31 March was as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

Available liquidity £m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 68.5 68.5 580 590
Money market deposits (onginal matunty over

three months) - - 250 250

Committed undrawn bank facilities 50.0 50.0 550 550

1185 118.5 1390 1390
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with matunty
of three months or less, net of any bank overdrafts which are payable on demand

Committed undrawn bank facitiies include £nmil (2012 £nil) of faciities that expire within one year, £nil
(2012 £5 0m) that expires after one year but less than two years and £50 Om (2012 £50 Om) that
expires In more than two years

The Group gives consideration to the timing of scheduled payments to avoid the rnisks associated with
the concentration of large cash flows within parhicular time penods The Group uses economic hedges
to ensure that certain cash flows can be matched

The following I1s an analysis of the matunty profile of contractual cash flows of principal and interest
payable under financial habiites and denvative financial instrumenis on an undiscounted basis
Dernvative cash flows have been shown net, all other cash flows are shown gross

On <1 1-2 2-3 3-4

Group and Company demand year years years years >4years Total
At 31 March 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade payables {18.3) - - - - - {18.3)
Amounts owed fo parent

undertaking - {44) (73.0) - - - (77.4)
Amounts owed to affiliated

undertaking - (123) (123) (12.3) (12.3) (255.1) (304.3)
Bonds - (42.0) (41.8) (41.8) (41.8) (993.9) (1,161.3)
Borrowings and overdrafts - (2.3) (23) (2.3) (2.3) (1626) (171.8)
Denvative financial

instruments (net) - (25.6) 6.2 6.2 6.2 (76.3) (83.3)

(18.3) (86.6) (123.2) (50.2) (50.2) (1,487.9) (1,816.4)

Cn <1 1-2 2-3 3-4

Group and Company demand year years years years >4 years Total
At 31 March 2012 £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Trade payabies (23 5) - - - - - (23 5)
Amounts owed to parent

undertaking - (44 (44) (730) - - (81 8)
Amounts owed to affiliated

undertaking - {(123) (123) (123) (123) (267 4) (3166)
Bonds - (418) (418 (418 (418) (1,0300) {1,197 2)
Borrowings and overdrafts - (2 3) (2 3) (23) (23) (1598) (1690)
Dernvative financial

mnstruments (net) - 142 (236) 70 70 (3386) (29 0)

(2356) (466) (B44) (1224) (494) {(1,4908) (1,817 1)
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Market risk

Market risk 1s the nisk that future cash flows of a financial mstrument, or the fair value of a financial
instrument, will fluctuate because of changes in market prices Market pnces include foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, inflatien {RPI1), equity and commodity prices The main types of market
rsk to which the Group 1s exposed are interest rate risk and inflation nsk The Board 1s required to
review and approve policies for managing these risks on an annual basis The Board approves all
new interest rate swaps and index-linked swaps entered intc The management of market risk I1s
undertaken using nsk lmits, approved by the Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer under delegated
authonty The Group has no significant foreign exchange, equity or commodity exposure

The Group has exposure to interest rate nisk and inflation nsk and this 1s explained in the sections
below

The Group borrows In the major global debt markets at fixed, index-inked and floating rates of
tnterest, using denvatives, where appropriate, to generate the desired effective interest basis

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 1s the nsk that either future cash flows of a financial instrument, or the fair value of a
financial instrument, will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates The Group's floating
rate borrowings and dervatives are exposed to a nsk of change in cash flows due to changes In
interest rates The Group's fixed rate borrowings and dernvatves are exposed to a nsk of change in
therr fair value due to changes in interest rates

Investrnents in short-term receivables and payables are not exposed {o interest rate nisk

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to change the basis of interest cash flows from fixed
to either inflation-linked or an alternative fixed profile to more accurately match the revenue profile
The cash flows exchanged under the denvatives are calculated by reference to a notional principal
amount The notional principal reflects the extent of the Group’s iInvolvement In the instruments, but
does not represent its exposure to credit nsk, which 1s assessed by reference to the farr value
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Sensitivity analysis on interest

The Group's fixed rate borrowings and derivatives are exposed to a risk of change in their farr value
due to changes In interest rates The following sensitivity analysis 1s used by Group management to
monitor interest rate nsk The analysis below shows forward-looking projections of market risk
assuming certain market conditions occur The sensitivity figures are calculated based on a
downward parallel shift of 0 5% and upward parallel shifts of 0 5% and 1% in the in the yield curve

2013 2012

Change in interest rates Change in interest rates

0.5% +0.5% +1% 05% +05% +1%

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Debt held at farr value {18.2) 17.2 334 (17 9) 16 8 327
Interest rate swaps {0.1) 0.1 0.2 {02) 02 04
Inflation-linked swaps {40.8) 35.5 66.4 (35 5) 305 566
Total fair value movement {59.1) 52.8 100.0 (53 86) 475 897

The sensitivity analysis above shows the amount by which the far value of items recorded on the
statement of financial position at farr value would be adjusted for a given interest rate movement As
fair value movements are taken to the income statement, there would be a comesponding adjustment
to profit in these scenarios (figures In brackets represent a reduction to profit}y However, there would
be no direct cash flow i/mpact ansing from these adjustments

The Group's floating rate borrowings and denvatives are exposed to a nsk of change in cash flows
due to changes in interest rates The analysis below shows the impact on profit for the year if interest
rates over the course of the year had been different from the actual rates

2013 2012

Change in interest rates Change in interest rates

0.5% +0.5% +1% -0 5% +0 5% +1%

£m £m £m £m Em £m

{nterest rate swaps - - - - - 01
Total finance expense - - - - - 01

impact

Throughout the year to 31 March 2013, the Group had no floating rate borrowings or dernvatives that
are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates

Although the above measures provide an indication of the Group's exposure to market risk, such
measures are limited in that histoncal data 1s not necessanly a good guide to future events, and the
exposures are calculated on static statement of financial position batances, with future changes in the
structure of the statement of financial position ignored

Index-linked debt 1s carned at amortised cost and as such the statement of financial position In
relation to this debt 1s not exposed to movements in interest rates
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (confinued)
Inflation risk

The Group's revenues are linked to movements in inflation, as measured by the Retail Pnces Index
{RP1) To economically hedge exposure to RPI, ENWL links a portion of its funding costs to RPI by
either 1ssuing RPI linked bonds or by using denvative financial instruments The Group’s index-linked
swaps are exposed to a nsk of change in their fair value ansing from a nisk of change of future cash
flows due to changes In inflation rates The Company's revenues are also linked to RPI via returns on
the Regulated Asset Value (RAV) and an increase in RPI would increase revenues, mitigating any
increase in finance expense

Sensitivity analysis on inflation

The Group's inflation-linked dervatives are exposed to a nsk of change n ther far value due to
changes in inflation rates The following sensitivity analysis 1 used by Group management to monitor
inflation rate nsk The analysis below shows forward-looking projections of market nsk assuming
certain market conditions occur The sensitivity figures are calculated based on a downward parallel
shift of 0 5% and upward parallel shifts of 0 5% and 1% in the yield curve

2013 2012

Change in inflation rates Change in inflation rates

0.5% +0.5% +1% -05% +0 5% +1%

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Inflation-linked swaps 45.9 (50.9) {107.4) 371 {41 5) (87 8)
Total fair value movement 459 (50.9) (107 4) 371 (415) (87 8)

The sensitivity analysis above shows the amount by which the farr value of items recorded on the
statement of financial position at farr value would be adjusted for a given inflation rate movement As
farr value movements are taken to the income statement, there would be a corresponding adjustment
to profit in these scenarios (figures in brackets represent a reduction to profit) However, there would
be ne direct cash flow impact ansing from these adjustments

The Group's inflation-linked borrowings and denvatives are exposed to a nisk of change in cash flows
due to changes in inflation rates The analysis below shows the impact on profit for the year If inflation
rates over the course of the year had been different from the actual rates

2013 2012

Change in inflation rates Change m inflation rates
<0.5% +0.5% +1% -0 5% +0 5% +1%
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Debt held at amortised cost —
inflation-linked interest basis 14 (1.4) (2.8) 13 (13) 27)
Inflation-linked swaps - - - - - {0 1)

Total finance expense 14 (1.4) (2.8) 13 (13) (28)
impact

Hedging

The Group does not use denvative financial instruments for speculative purposes, and has not
pledged collateral in relation to any of its dernvative instruments At 31 March 2013, the Group's
denvatives are not designated in formal hedging relationships (2012 none), and instead are
measured at fair value through the income statement
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The tables below provide a companson of the book values and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments by category as at the statement of financial position date Where available, market values
have been used to determine far values (see Level 1 in the farr value hierarchy overleaf) Where
market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting future cash flows at
prevailling Iinterest and RPI rates sourced from market data (see Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy
overleaf) In light of the adoption of IFRS 13 In the year, the rates used to discount these cash flows
have been adjusted for the non-performance nsk of either the Company or the counterparty where
appropriate  The non-performance nisk has been calculated by reference to the most recent
comparable transactions and market-corroborated data adjusted for market and Company specific
events subsequent to the transactions The adjustment for non-performance nsk of the Company as
at 31 March 201315 £109 4m (2012 £nil)

For cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables the book
values approximate to the fair values because of therr shor-term nature For non-public long term
loans and receivables, farr values are estimated by discounting future contractual cash flows to net
present values using current market interest rates available to the Group for similar financial
instruments as at the year end

All of the fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position for the Group and
Company occur on a recurring basis

The farr values of financial assets and labilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the
statement of financial position, are as follows

Fair values
2013 2012
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
Group and Company £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets - - - -
Current assets
Trade recewvables 6.1 6.1 65 65
Cash and cash equivalents 68.5 68.5 590 590
Money market deposits {onginal matunty
over three months) - - 250 250
74.6 746 905 905
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

2013 2012
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Farr value
Group and Company £m £m £m £m
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings designated at FVTPL (382.5) {382.5) (365 4) (365 4)
Borrowings measured at amortised cost (467.0) {577.3) {458 6) (565 4)
Amounts due to parent undertaking (67.4) (67.4) (67 4) (67 4)
Amounts due to affilated companies {195.9) {244.2) (195 8) (234 9)
Denvative financial instruments {65.3) (65.3) (126 1) (126 1)
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {18.3) (18.3) (23 5) (23 5)
Denvative financial instruments (31.7) (31.7) - -
(1,228.1) (1,386.7) (1,236 6) (1,372 7)

Fair value measurements recagnised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value

IS observable

) Level 1 farr value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for iIdentical assets or habihties,

. Level 2 farr value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or iabilty, either directly (1 e as prices)

or indirectly (1 e denved from prices), and

. Level 3 far value measurements are those dernved from valuation techmiques that include
inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

Level1 Level2 Level3 Total

31 March 2013 — Group and Company £m £m £m £m

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Denvative financial assets . - - -

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss

Denvative financial habiliies - {97.0) - (97.0)

Financial habilities designated at FVTPL (382.5) - - (382.5)

(3825) (97.0) - (479.5)
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 March 2012 — Group and Company £m £m £m £m
Financial assets at far value through profit or loss
Denvative financial assets - - - -
Financial habiities at farr value through
profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities - (126 1) - {126 1)
Financia!l iabiibes designated at FVTPL (365 4) - - {365 4)
(365 4) (126 1) - {491 5)
There were no transfers between levels duning the current year (2012 same)
17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company Group Company
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 18.3 18.3 235 235
Amounts owed to group 36 3.6 156 156
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - 154 - 154
Other taxation and social security 111 1141 67 67
Customer contnbutions (see note 22) 28.2 28.2 289 289
Refundable customer deposits (see note 23) - - 04 04
Accruals and deferred income 78.1 78.3 76 1 76 4
139.3 154.9 1512 166 9

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for capital purchases and
ongoing costs The average credit period in the year was 15 days from receipt of invoice (2012 20

days)

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their farr

value
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18 PROVISIONS
Group Company
Other Other

£m £m

At 1 April 2012 - -
Transfer from accruals 20 20
Additional provision in the year 219 219
Release to the iIncome statement on re-estimate of lability (13) (13)
Utiisation of provision (2 6) (2 6)
At 31 March 2013 20.0 20.0
Group Group

and and

Company Company

Other Other

2013 2012

£m £m

Current 85 -
Non current 11.5 -
At 31 March 20.0 -

During the year, an amount of £2 Om in relation to onercus lease commitments on 4 retail properties
was reclassified from accruals to provisions to better reflect the nature of the labilites This amount
reflects the directors’ best estimates of the liabilities ansing from these leases, and takes account of
the directors' expectations that the lease costs ansing will be borne by the Group until the leases
terminate (hence the amount represents a 100% provision)

Additionally during the year, a provision of £21 9m was created In relation to onerous leases In
respect of a portfolo of retail property units that had previously been assigned to a third party During
the year, the third party entered administrabhon and ENWL has become liable under privity of contract
for the costs associated with these leases On imtial recogntion of the provision, the total portfolio
comprised 39 leases, of which

» On 31 leases, the Ikelhood of some obligations under the leases becoming payable by
ENWL, or the leases being terminated or assigned for & fee, was considered probable and
hence a provision has been recorded to reflect management's best estimate of the likely
amounts payable, on a discounted basis, and

¢ On 8 leases, the likelihood of the obligations becoming payable by ENWL was considered
remote and hence no amounts were provided This continues to be the case In respect of
these 8 leases and hence no provision or disclosure has been made at 31 March 2013 in
respect of these leases

The provision recorded on the 31 leases was onginally £21 9m, since its initial recording, £2 6m of the
provision has been utiised The remaining provision has also subsequently been re-estimated,
resulting in a release to the income statement of £1 3m, and a carned forward provision at 31 March
2013 of £18 Om in relation to 25 leases
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18 PROVISIONS (continued)

The £18 0m provision on the 25 leases that are still considered probable of giving rise to lrabilities has
been evaluated by management, supported by relevant external legal and property specialists, and
reflects the best estmate as at the statement of financial positton date of the amounts that will
become payable by the Company, on a discounted basis The estimate 1s a result of a detalled nsk
assessment process, which considers a number of vanables including the location and size of the
stores, expectations regarding the ability of the Company to both defend its position and also to re-let
the properties, conditicns in the local property markets, demand for retall warehousing, likely penods
of vacant possesston and the results of negotiations with individual landlords, letting agents and
tenants, and I1s hence inherently judgemental

In terms of the likely timing of cash outflows, exposure across both the 4 onerous leases and the 25
other retail properties s forecast to peak at approximately £8 5m in 2013/14 with the remaining
outflows faling over the period to 2021 The maximum potential exposure n relation to this combined
portfolio, on a discounted basis, 1s £54 4m, profiled over an 8 year period from 2013 to 2021 (total
undiscounted exposure of £66 4m)

19 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

2013 2012

£m £m
Salanes 0.6 07
Accrued bonus 0.7 06
Pension 0.1 01
1.4 14

The aggregate emoluments of the Directors 1n 2013 amounted to £1,375,046 (2012 £1,433,746)
Emoluments compnse salanes, fees, taxable henefits and the wvalue of short-term and long-term
incentive awards Amaounts payable under long-term incentive awards are not payable untl) June 2015
and are dependent upon a combinatton of both financial performance and comparative performance,
as assessed by Ofgem, over the DPC5 period The emoluments of the highest paid Director in 2013
Iin respect of services to the Group amounted to £774,941 (2012 £757,933) Not included in the
amounts shown above are further payments made in respect of Directors’ services, as detalled In
note 27

Mr M McCallion 15 a former member of the United Utiihes Pension Scheme and a member of, and
contnbuted to, a defined benefit section of the ENW Electricity Supply Pension Scheme (‘ENW
ESPS'), which provides an entitlement, on normal retirement of age 65, equal to 1/60™ of pensionable
earnings for each complete year of service Mr S Johnson 1s a member of the defined contribution
section of the ENW ESPS scheme

The pension contributions for the highest paid Director for 31 March 2013 were £nil (2012 £36,013)
The accrued pension at 31 March 2013 for the highest paid Director was £nil {2012 £nul)

As at 31 March 2013 the Directors have no interests in the ordinary shares of the Company
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Group and Company

The Group’s defined benefit arrangement 1s the ENW Group of the ESPS (“the Scheme™) and forms
part of the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme ("ESPS”") Upto 31 March 2011 the Scheme was split
into two sections However, following the ‘hive-up’ of the assets and lrabilities of ENWSL to ENWL
and the termination of the Asset Services Agreement betwesn ENWL and ENWSL on the 31 March
2011, the two sections were merged as at that date

The defined benefit section of the scheme was closed to all new entrants on 1 September 2006 New
employees of the Group are instead prowvided with access to a defined contnbution section of the
Scheme The total cost charged to the income statement m relation to the defined contnbution section
for the year ended 31 March 2013 was £1 6m (2012 £1 3m) and represents contributions payable to
the Scheme at rates specified in the rules of the Scheme As at 31 March 2013 contributions of £0 1m
(2012 £0 1m) due in respect of the current reporting period had not been pad over to the defined
contribution Scheme

During the year the Group made contributions of £28 5m (2012 £53 3m) to the defined benefit
section of the Scheme The prior year's contribution included the advance payment of the April 2013
to March 2015 deficit contributions paid by the Group on 30 March 2012 The Group estimates that
contributions for the year ending 31 March 2014 will amount to around £11m The total defined benefit
pension expense for the year was £6 8m (2012 £7 6m) [nformation about the pension arrangements
for the Executive Directors 15 contained in note 19

As at 31 March 2013 contrnibutions of £2 4m (2012 £3 3m) due In respect of the current reporting
period had not been paid over to the defined benefit Scheme

The last actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carned out as at 31 March 2010 The 31 March 2013
report is being finalised and 1s expected to be finalised before 31 March 2014 The valuation has
been projected forward by an independent actuary to take account of the requirements of IAS 19
‘Employee Benefits' in order to assess the position as at 31 March 2013  The present value of the
defined benefit obligation, the related current service cast and the past service cost were measured
using the projected unit credit method A pension deficit under IAS 19 of £105 8m 1s included in the
statement of financial position at 31 March 2013 (2012 £14 2m)

In January 2012 a bulk transfer amount of £4 9m was recewed into the ENW Group section of the
Electnaity Supply Pension Scheme (*ESPS”) in respect of the transfer of pension habilities from the
United Utilties Pension Scheme and the United Utities Group Plc section of the ESPS These
pension liabilities related to the transfer of employees into the ENW Group section following the
purchase of Electricity North West {Construction and Maintenance) Limited from United Utilities PLC
in the pricr year On 1 Aprl 2012 a bulk transfer amount of £2 1m was recewved into the ENW Group
section of the Electneity Supply Pension Scheme (“ESPS") in respect of the transfer of pension
llabilities from the Vertex pension scheme

The main financial assumptions used by the actuary (in determining the deficit) were as follows

2013 2012

% %

Discount rate 41 51
Expected return on assets 5.2 56
Pensionable salary increases 3.9 38
Pension increases 3.4 33
Price inflation 34 33
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)

The mortality rates utilised in the valuation are based on the standard actuanal tables S1PMA/S1PFA
{birth year) tables with a 105% loading to allow for differences in mortalty between the Scheme
population and the population used in the standard tables (unchanged from 2012) A long term
improvement rate of 1 25% p a 1s assumed (2012 125% pa) These factors have been taken into
account in the calculation of the defined benefit obligations of the Scheme

The current life expectancies (in years) underlying the value of the accrued pension Scheme liabilities
for the Scheme are

2013 2012
Male Ife expectancy at age 60 Years Years
Retired member 26.5 26 4
Non-retired member 28.0 279

In valuing the liabilites of the Scheme at 31 March 2013 mortality assumptions have been made as
indicated above If the Iife expectancy had been changed to assume that all members of the Fund
lived for one year longer, the value of the reported hiabilites at 31 March 2013 would have increased
by approximately £32m before deferred tax

As at 31 March 2013, the Scheme’s assets and labilities recognised in the statement of financial
position were as follows

Scheme Value at Scheme assets Value at

assets at 31 31 March at 31 March 31 March

March 2013 2013 2012 2012

% £m % £m

Equities 481 510.2 455 4358
Gilts 10.8 114.2 104 1000
Bonds 334 354.3 340 3261
Property 74 78.6 69 66 2
Cash 0.1 14 06 59
Net current assets 0.2 24 26 247
Total farr value of assets 100 1,061.1 100 O 958 7
Present value of habilities - {1,166.9) - (972 9)
Net retirement benefit obligation (105.8) (14 2)

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Group considered the
level of expected returns on nsk-free investments, the histoncal level of the nsk premium associated
with the other asset classes in which the portfolio 1s invested and the expectations for future returns of
each asset class The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based on the actual
allocation to develop the expected long-term return on assets assumption for the portfolio  The actual
return on the Scheme assets was £122 7m gain (2012 £62 5m) None of the pension scheme assets
are held n the Group’s own financial instruments or any other assets used by the Group
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (conlinued)

Movements in the present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

At 1 April (972.9) {925 1)
Current service cost (9.9) (99)
Interest cost on Scheme obligations {48.6) (49 8)
Member contributions (2.2) 21)
Augmentation (0.6) (10)
Actuaral losses — assumptions (183.7) (28 7)
Benefits paid 53.1 512
Bulk transfers (2.1) (7 5)
At 31 March (1,166.9) {972 9)

Movements in the fair value of the Group penston Scheme assets were as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

At 1 Apnl 958.7 8838
Expected return on Scheme assets 52.3 52 4
Actuanal gains 704 101
Company contributions 28.5 533
Member contributions 2.2 21
Benefits paid (53.1) {51 2)
Buik transfers 21 82
At 31 March 1,061.1 958 7

The net pension expense before taxation recognised in the income statement, before capitalisation, in
respect of the defined benefit Scheme 1s summansed as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Current service cost {9.9) (2 9)
Past service cost® (0.6) (03)
Expected return on Scheme assets 523 524
Interest cost on Scheme obhgations (48.6) (49 8)
Net pension expense before taxation {6.8) (7 6)

The above amounts are recognised in arriving at operating profit except for the expected return on
Scheme assets and interest on Scheme obligations which have been recognised within investment
income

3 For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Past Service Cost includes £0 6m in respect of augmentations  For the year ending
31 March 2012, the Past Sarvice Cost includes £1m in respect of augmentations and (£0 Ym} due to the difference between the
assets received and the increase in habilities in respect of the bulk transfers received on 12 January 2012
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)

The reconciliation of the opering and closing statement of financial position 1s as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

At 1 Apnl (14.2) (41 3)
Expense recognised in the income

statement (6.8) (7 6)

Contributions paid 28.5 533

Actuarial losses gross of taxation (113.3) (18 6)

At 31 March (105.8) (14 2)

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income At 31 March 2013, a
cumulative gain of £67 2m (2012 £180 5m) had been recorded directly in other comprehensive

ncome

The history of the Scheme for the current and prior years 1s as follows

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit
obligation (1,166.9) (972 9) (925 1) (984 1) (728 0)
Fair value of Scheme assets 1,061.1 958 7 8838 841 3 700 5
Net retirement benefit
obligation (105.8) (14 2) (41 3) (142 8) (27 5)
Expenence adjustments on
Scheme liabtlities - - 27 1 - 08
Expenence adjustments an
Scheme assets 704 10 1 44 - (152 5)
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21 DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax labilibes and assets recognised by the Group and Company,
and the movements thereon, during the current and prior years

Accelerated Retirement
tax benefit
depreciation  obligations Other Total
Group £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2011 2857 (107) (16 4) 2586
{Credited)/charged to the Income
statement (19 3) 105 (8 6) {17 4)
Deferred tax on actuanal loss on
defined benefit pension schemes - (44 - (4 4)
Adjustment due to change n future
tax rates of brought forward
deferred tax asset - 12 - 12
At 1 April 2012 266 4 (34) (25 0) 2380
(Credited)/charged to the income
statement {(131) 42 62 (27)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss on
defined benefit pension schemes - (26 0) - (26 0)
Adjustment due to change In future
tax rates of brought forward
deferred tax asset - 08 - 08
At 31 March 2013 253.3 {24.4) (18.8) 210.1
Accelerated Retirement
tax benefit
depreciation obligations Other Total
Company £m £m __£m £m
At 1 Apnl 2011 286 4 (10 7) (16 1) 2596
{Credited)/charged to the income
statement (19 4) 105 (8 8) (17 7)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss on
defined benefit pension schemes - (44 - (4 4)
Adjustment due to change in future
tax rates of brought forward - 12 - 12
At 1 April 2012 2670 (34) (24 9) 2387
(Credited)/charged to the income
statement (13 8) 42 62 (3 4)
Deferred tax on actuarnal loss on
defined benefit pension schemes - (26 0) - (26 0)
Adjustment due to change In future
tax rates of brought forward
deferred tax asset - 08 - 08
At 31 March 2013 253.2 (24.4) {18.7) 2101

There are no sighificant unrecognised deferred tax assets or liabilities for either the Group or

Company in either the current or prior year

Other deferred tax relates primarily to derivative financial instruments
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22 CUSTOMER CONTRIBUTIONS

Customer contributtons are amounts received from a customer in respect of the provision of a new
connection to the network Customer contrbutions are amoritsed through the income statement over

the lifetime of the relevant asset

Group and Company £m
At 1 April 2011 4775
Additions during the year 348
Amortisation (12 9)
At 1 Apnl 2012 499 2
Additions dunng the year 291
Amortisation (13 6)
At 31 March 2013 514.7
2013 2012

£m £m

Amounts due In less than one year (see note 17) 28.2 289
Amounts due after more than one year 486.5 4703
514.7 499 2

23 REFUNDABLE CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Refundable customer deposits are those customer contributions which may be partly refundable,

dependent on contracted targets

2013 2012

Group and Company £m £m
Amounts due in less than one year (see note 17) - 04
Amounts due after more than one year 3.1 34
3.1 38
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24 SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
£ £
Authorised:
569,999,996 (2012 569,999,996) ordinary shares of 50 pence each 284,999,998 284,999,998
4 'A' ordinary shares of 50 pence each 2 2
Special nghts redeemable preference share of £1 1 1

285,000,001 285,000,001

2013 2012
£ £

Allotted, called up and fully paid:
476,821,341 (2012 476,821,341) ordinary shares of 50 pence each 238,410,671 238,410,671
4 ‘A’ ordinary shares of 50 pence each 2 2

238,410,673 238,410,673

The ‘A’ ordinary shares and the ordinary shares rank pan passu in ail respects, save that dividends
may be declared on one class of shares without being declared on the other
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25 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Called

up Share Capital
share premium Revaluation redemption Retained TFotal

capital account reserve reserve earnings Equity
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2012 2384 44 1079 86 178 1 5374
Profit for the year - - - - 147 0 1470
Transfer from revaluation
reserve - - (22) - 22 -
Actuanal loss on defined
benefit schemes - - - - (1133) (113 3)
Tax on components of
comprehensive income - - - - 252 252
Total comprehensive
(expense)/income for the
year - - (2.2) - 61.1 58.9
Transactions with
owners recorded directly
in equity
Equity dividends - - - - {66 0) (66 0)
At 31 March 2013 238.4 4.4 105.7 8.6 173.2 5303

In 1997 the Company undertook a revaluation of certain assets, following Norweb's acquisition of
North West Water This resulted in the creation of a revaluation reserve of £234 9m The additional
depreciation created as resuit of the revaluation 1s transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
earnings on an annual basis

Capital redemption reserve, is a non distributable reserve specifically for the purchase of own shares

97




Electricity North West Limited

Consolidated Financral Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes (continued)

25 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY {continued)
Called up Share Capital
share premium Revaluation redemption Retained Total

capital account reserve reserve eamings Equity
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2012 2384 44 1079 86 180 1 5394
Profit for the year - - - - 144 7 144 7
Transfer from
revaluation
reserve - - {22 - 22 -
Actuanal losses on
defined benefit
schemes - - - - (1133) (113 3)
Tax on components of
comprehensive Income - - - - 252 252
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - {2.2) - 58.8 56.6
Transactions with
owners recorded
directly in equity
Equity divtdends - - - - (66 0) (66 0}
At 31 March 2013 238.4 44 105.7 8.6 1729 530.0

The profit after tax for the parent Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 was £144 7m (2012
£69 7m) and the income for the year was £468 Om (2012 £404 6m) As permitted by s408 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own income statement

26 OPERATING LEASES

The Group and Company are committed to making the following payments over the hfetime of the
lease n respect of non-cancellable operating leases which expire in

Re-stated Re-stated
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buildings machinery
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m

Within one year - - 01

In the second to fifth

years inclusive 0.2 - 17 -
After five years 6.2 31 56 34
6.4 31 74 34
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the following transactions with related parties were entered into

Group Company Group Company
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m
Transactions with related parties
Recharges to Electricity North West (Construction and
Maintenance) Ltd 0.9 09 04 04
Executive Directors’ remuneration (note 19) 14 14 14 14
Directors’ services 0.2 0.2 02 02
Interest payable to North West Electricity Networks Ltd 4.4 4.4 44 44
Interest payable to ENW Fihance pic 124 124 124 124
Dividends paid to North West Electnicity Networks Ltd 66.0 66.0 620 620
Amounts outstanding with related parties are as follows
Group Company Group Company
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed to related parties
Group tax relief to North West Electricity Networks
Ltd 104 10.4 119 119
Group tax relief to North West Electricity Networks
(Holdings) Ltd 1.9 1.9 - -
Interest payable to North West Electncity Networks
Ltd 1.2 1.2 13 13
Interest payable to ENW Finance plc 24 24 24 24
Amounts owed to Electricity North West
{Construction and Maintenance) Ltd 0.2 0.2 - -
Amounts owed to Electricity North West Services
Limited - 154 - 154
Borrowings from North West Electricity Networks Ltd 67.4 67.4 67 4 67 4
Borrowings from ENW Finance plc 198.5 198.56 1956 1956
Amounts owed by related parties
Amounts owed by North West Electricity Networks
Ltd 3.6 36 37 37
Amounts owed by Electricity North West
(Construction and Maintenance) |.td 0.5 0.5 03 03
Amounts owed by North West Electricity Networks
_(Holdings) Ltd 0.2 0.2 - -

The loan from North West Electricity Networks Ltd accrues interest at 6 5% (2012 6 5%) and 1s
repayable in March 2015 The loan from ENW Finance plc accrues interest at 6 125% (2012 6 125%)

and 1s repayable 1n July 2021

Fees of £0 1m (2012 £0 1m) were payable to Colonial First State in respect of the prowision of
Directors’ services Colonial First State 1s part of the Commonwealth Bank of Australia which s

identified as a related party as per note 30

Fees of £0 1m (2012 £0 1m) were payable to IIF Int'l Holding GP Ltd (‘lIF’) in respect of the provision
of Directors’ services which I1s identified as a related party as per note 30
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Group Company Group Company

' 2013 2013 2012 2012

Directors’ remuneration 1s as follows £m £m £m em
Short-term employee benefits 1.0 1.0 10 10
Post-employment benefits 01 0.1 01 01
Other long-term employee benefits 0.3 0.3 03 03
1.4 14 14 14

28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Group Company

Group Company

2013 2013 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m

Operating profit 225.4 222.4 189 4 189 4
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 88.2 88.2 839 839
Amorhsation of Intangible assets 8.3 8.3 83 83
Amortisation of customer contributions (13.6) (13.6) (12 9) (12 9)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.6) {0.6) (0 6) (0 6)
Cash contributions in excess of pension charge to
operating profit (18.0) (18.0) (43 1) (43 1)
Operating cash flows before movements In
working capital 289.7 286.7 2250 2250
Changes in working capital
Decrease/{(increase) in nventones 1.6 1.6 {12) (12)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables {7.0) {7.0) 257 257
Increase/{decrease) in payables 5.1 8.1 (17 6) (17 6)
Cash generated from operations 289.4 289.4 2319 2319
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29 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of the authorised and allotted share capital, together with details of the movements in the
Company's 1ssued share capital during the year are shown in note 24 The Company has Qrdinary
shares which carry no nght to fixed income Each share carries the right to one vote at general
meetings of the Company The Company also has ‘A’ crdinary shares which rank pan passu in all
respects save that dividends may be declared on one class of shares without being declared on the
other

There exists an unissued special nights redeemable preference share which does not carry any voting
nghts and can only be held by one of Her Majesty's Secretaries of State, another Minister of the
Crown, the Solicitor for the affairs of her Majesty’s Treasury or any other person acting on behalf of
the Crown This share 1s a legacy from the privatisation of the Company and was 1ssued on 19
November 1980 and redeemed on 31 March 1895

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares which are both
governed by the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevaling legislation The
directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may result
in restrictions in the transfer of securities or on voting rights

No person has any special nghts of control over the Company’s share capital and all 1ssued shares
are fully paid up

With regard fo the appointment and replacement of directors, the company 1s governed by its Articles
of Association, the Companies Act and related legislation The Articles themselves may be amended
by special resolution of the shareholders The powers of Directors are descrbed In the Articles of
Association, copies of which are availlable on request, and the Corporate Governance statement on
pages 30 to 40

30 ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The immedate parent undertaking 15 North West Electncity Networks Limited, a company
incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom The ultimate parent undertaking 1s North West
Electricity Networks (Jersey) Limited, a company incorporated and registered in Jersey The external
address of the ultimate parent company 1s Ogier House, The Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, Channel
Islands, JE4 9WG

This Group s the smallest group In which the results of the Company are consolidated The largest
group 1n which the results of the Company are consolidated 1s that headed by North West Electricity
Networks (Jersey) Limited incorporated in Jersey

First State Investments Fund Management Sarl on behalf of First State European Diversified
Infrastructure Fund FCP-SIF ('EDIF’) and IIF Intl Holding GP Ltd (IF’) have been identified as
ulttmate controling parties and are adwvised by Colonial First State Global Asset Management {(a
member of the Commonwealth Bank of Australia Group) and JP Morgan Investment Management Inc
respectively
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C2C Capacity to Customers (LCNF/ future networks project)

CcGuU Cash Generating Unit

Cl Customer Interruptions

CLASS Customer Load Active System Services (LCNF/ future networks project)

CML Customer Minutes Lost

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

DECC Department of Energy and Chimate Change

DNO Distribution Network Operator

DPC4 Distribution Price Control 4, 2005-2010

DPC5 Distribution Price Control 5, 2010-2015

DuOS Distribution Use Of System

ELT Executive Leadership Team

ENWL Electncity North West Limited

ENWSL Electrnicity North West Services Limited (formerly ‘UUES")

ESPS Electrnicity Supply Pension Scheme

ESQCR Electricity Safety and Quality Continuity {Amendment) Regulations

FVTPL Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GEMA Gas and Electricity Markets Authorty

GSoP Guaranteed Standard of Performance

Hl Health Indices

HVILV/IEHV High Voltage / Low Voltage/Extra High Voltage

ICP Independent Connections Provider

IDNO Independent Distnbution Network Operator

IET Institute of Engineenng and Technology

IF1 Innovation Funding Incentive

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard

kV Kilo Volts

kVA Kilo Volts Ampere

LCC Lancashire County Council

LCNF Low Carbon Network Fund

LI Load Indices

LRRM Losses Rolling Retention Mechanism

MAG Manchester Airport Group

NGT National Gnd Transmission

NTR Non Trading Rechargeable

Ofgem Office of Gas and Electricity Markets

PPE Property, Plant and Equipment

RAV Regulatory Asset Value

RCF Revolving Credit Facility

RIDDOR Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulation

RIIO Revenue using Incentives ta deliver Innovation and Outputs

RIIO - ED1 Revenue using Incentives to deliver Innovation and Qutputs — Electricity
Distribution 1

RIO - GD1 Revenue using Incentives to deliver Inngvation and Outputs — Gas Distribution 1

RIO -T1 Revenue using Incentives to deliver Innovation and Qutputs — Transmission 1

RMS Relevant Market Segment

RPI Retall Price Index

TIGM Transport for Greater Manchester

UUES United Utilities Electrnicity Services Limited
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